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Our Vision
To be the semiconductor industry’s top choice of equipment 
solution provider through value innovation, best-in-class 
performance, excellent service & support, cost effectiveness, 
environmental friendliness and partnership with customers, peers, 
suppliers & employees.

Our Mission
• Strive to meet or exceed expectation of  customers, peer 

partners, suppliers, employees & investors
• Identify and employ/partner with the best talents in the market
•  Unleash the best potential of partners &  employees
•  Contribute to local & global communities in education & long 

term economy sustainability
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

100%

VisDynamics Research Sdn Bhd

•	 Design, R&D and Assembly of Back-end 
Semiconductor Equipment

•	 High Speed Transfer and Inspection 
Machine for Non-Semiconductor Devices 

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
2012
RM’000

2013
RM’000

2014
RM’000

2015
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Turnover 9,747 3,623 16,116 9,434 27,468
Gross Profit 3,882 1,029 8,146 4,394 15,446
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (439) (2,395) 1,240 (664) 5,419
Taxation - - - - (1,128)
Profit After Taxation (439) (2,395) 1,240 (664) 4,292
No. Of Ordinary Shares In Issue ('000) 100,695 100,695 100,695 110,695 110,695 
Shareholders' Funds (RM'000) 18,664 16,269 17,509 19,423 23,718
Basic EPS (Sen) * (0.4) (2.3) 1.2 (0.6) 3.9
Net Tangible Assets Per Share (Sen)** 15.90 12.50 13.40 14.20 18.40
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (756) (3,622) 1,643 1,153 5,093

NOTES
* The basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) is arrived at by dividing the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
**  The Net Tangible Assets (NTA) Per Share is arrived at by dividing net tangible assets value attributable to ordinary shares 

by the number of ordinary shares in issue.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I 
am honoured and pleased to present 
the annual report and audited financial 
statements of VisDynamics Holdings 
Berhad (“VisDynamics”) for the financial 
year ended 31 October 2016.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (cont’d)

RESILIENCE IN A CHALLENGING ENVIRONMENT

Global economic and political uncertainty remained prevalent 
throughout 2016. A modest recovery continued in advanced 
economies but many uncertainties still linger following the 
Brexit vote and the outcome of the US elections. 

Domestically, the Malaysian economic outlook remains weak 
especially with sluggish commodity prices, poor consumer 
sentiment and the weakening Malaysian Ringgit resulting in 
higher import prices which in turn has resulted in the need for 
the government to re-balance its fiscal budget.  

On the bright side, export-oriented companies in general, like 
VisDynamics have benefited from the continued depreciation 
in the Malaysian Ringgit (which averaged around 4.15 to the 
US Dollar between October 2015 - 2016). Moreover, market 
sentiment in 2016 remained resilient for the semiconductor 
industry and demand for semiconductor equipment in China 
and other emerging markets in Asia were not affected by 
global economic uncertainty. Overall, we are delighted that 
the company has demonstrated its resilience in a challenging 
economic environment and ability to achieve a most 
commendable result for 2016.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

I am pleased to advise that VisDynamics posted much higher 
revenues of RM27.5 million in the current financial year, an 
increase of RM18.1 million from the previous corresponding 
financial year of RM9.4 million, contributed largely by the 
increase in sales of semiconductor equipment. In line with 
the improvement in sales, VisDynamics posted a profit before 
taxation of RM5.4 million in the current year as compared 
to the loss before taxation of RM664,000 for the previous 
corresponding year ended 31 October 2015.

I am delighted to note that our revenues and profit achieved 
for the 2016 financial year are the best we have ever done to-
date, largely driven by our sales generation activities and cost 
management programmes.

On a product group basis, both gravity and tray equipment 
contributed 89% of our total revenue generated during financial 
year 2016. The balance was made up of supplementary 
equipment systems, upgrading projects and spares and 
services. As for geographical coverage, about 99% of our 
sales went to Asia, with some of them going to sub-con 
houses of worldwide end- customers, while the remainder of 
sales went directly to United States of America.

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

The Semiconductor Industry Association (SIA), representing 
U.S. leadership in semiconductor manufacturing, design, 
and research, recently announced worldwide sales of 
semiconductors had reached $31.0 billion for the month on 
November 2016, an increase of 7.4 percent compared to the 
November 2015 total of $28.9 billion and 2.0 percent more 
than the October 2016 total of $30.4 billion. November 2016 
marked the industry’s largest year-to-year growth since 
January 2015.

The World Semiconductor Trade Statistics (WSTS) forecasted 
the world semiconductor market to be stable in 2016 at $335 
billion with growth returning in subsequent years. All major 
product categories in all regions worldwide are predicted to 
grow at approximately 3% and 2% respectively in 2017 and 
2018 and in value terms reaching $354 billion in 2018. The 
Americas and Asia Pacific regions are expected to show the 
highest growth rate.

Based on the above semiconductor growth expectations, 
and coupled with the anticipation of new product launches, 
VisDynamics is optimistic on its business prospect for 2017.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND THANKS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I wish to extend our 
appreciation to members of our management team and 
employees of VisDynamics Group. Congratulations on a 
successful financial performance for the year. Your effective 
execution of the Group’s strategies through hard work, focus 
and determination are much appreciated and continue to 
contribute to VisDynamics’ success.

Our sincere gratitude also to our shareholders, customers, 
business associates, suppliers, bankers and government 
authorities for their confidence and support to the Board and 
Management.

Finally, to my fellow Board members, thank you for your 
contributions, advice, and professionalism in making the 
Board more efficient and effective.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL & ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

Since its early beginnings, VisDynamics has always believed that responsibility for sustainability extends beyond regulatory 
requirements as it is our moral obligation to do whatever we can to improve the quality of life of our employees and their families 
and undertake social activities that benefit the local community and society in general whilst managing our resources in a 
sustainable way to protect the environment in which we operate and to do so in a responsible manner as part of our governance 
philosophy.

To this end, VisDynamics has conducted numerous activities to fulfill our commitment, including the following:

COMMUNITy CARE

VisDynamics has always played its role in giving back to the community through the sponsorship of worthy causes and support 
of events that promote awareness of society’s needs.

• In November 2016, we proudly co-organised the Blood Donation Campaign, which was held at the company’s premises. 
Employees of VisDynamics, their friends and relatives, vendors together with neighbouring companies were invited to 
participate in this event.  

• In January 2017, as part of the VisDynamics’ continuous drive to create a positive impact on society and individual lives, 
we reached out to the mentally and physically impaired by providing food and financial assistance to Happiness Centre 
For the Mentally Disabled Children’s Home at Klebang and also to the Handicapped & Mentally Retarded Children Love 
Centre in Bachang, both in Melaka. 

ENHANCING LEARNING

• It is our human resource practice to offer internship to undergraduates who are required to fulfill their practical training 
requirements. Apart from learning technical skills, these undergraduates have opportunity to gain insight of our corporate 
culture, business processes and assembly operations. We hope these young people may well be attracted to join us upon 
graduation.

• We assess and conduct continuous upgrading of our employees’ skill and knowledge in order that they may acquire 
technical know-how and excel in their work performances through various training programmes, workshops and 
attendance at seminars.

• Inviting students from colleges or universities to observe and learn about technology development, business operations 
and management. In March 2016, undergraduates from MARA were invited to our premises to learn about how listed 
companies like ours conducted board meetings. 

 
PROMOTING OCCUPATIONAL SAFETy, HEALTH & HARMONy

VisDynamics strongly believes that its employees are key assets as they play a vital role in attaining success and sustainability 
of the group’s performance. Consequently, the company constantly invests in its employees through the following approaches:

•	 Ensuring that the health and safety of its employees are taken care of at the workplace by setting-up an Emergency 
Response Team to monitor, review and improve on the health and safety rules and procedures whilst continuously 
promoting health and safety awareness and practice at all levels.

• Provision of facilities to assist physically challenged members of our society in the navigation and use of the building.

• Ensuring a harmonious workplace by practicing non-prejudicial policies against race or gender. This guiding principle 
promulgates basic human and employee rights for maintaining good governance and a healthy, professional workplace.

• Developing a sense of belonging among staff by providing a platform for employees to interact via staff briefings that are 
held bi-monthly and other feedback and mentoring mechanisms.

• Promoting work-life balance by organizing various physical activities such as jogging, mount climbing and weekly 
badminton sessions.

• In addition, the company also actively organises a variety of recreational activities such as the company trip, annual dinner, 
festive gatherings and birthday gift celebrations.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL & ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITIES (cont’d)
PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

•	 In order to promote a green environment, VisDynamics’ ‘green building’ is designed in an environmentally-friendly manner 
in pleasant surroundings with efficient use of natural light and fresh air.

•	 In addition and as part of our effort to sustain the environment, the company has installed solar panels to minimise energy 
consumption and in turn, costs in our assembly plant and offices. 

•	 We also practice the need to ‘recycle and re-use’. Once a month, unused papers. boxes and other recyclable items are 
collected and donated to the Tzu Chi Foundation of Malaysia. 

We will continue to uphold our belief in the value of community service, people development and sustaining the environment 
through the pursuit of our corporate social and environmental activities.
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Blood Donation 
Campaign
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Company Trip
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Annual Dinner
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Chinese New year

Visit to the Mentally 
Disabled Children Home
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Hari Raya

Christmas
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

VINCENT LOH
Male / 66 years of age / Malaysian
Chairman/ Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Mr Vincent Loh (“Mr Vincent”) was 
appointed as the Independent Non-
Executive Director on 23 April 2010 
and subsequently appointed as 
the Chairman on 12 March 2015. 
He is also a member of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination Committee 
and Remuneration Committee.

Mr Vincent qualified as a chartered 
accountant in 1974 from the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in England & 
Wales. He was made a Fellow (FCA) in 
1977.

Mr Vincent joined the PA Consulting 
Group (UK-based international 
management consultants), initially 
located in Singapore for 6 years and later 
back in London. He was responsible for 
PA’s financial, HR and administrative 
management of the Asian group and 
later headed the finance function for 
PA’s UK group whilst gaining experience 
as a management consultant. He was 
subsequently promoted in 1988 as 
commercial director of PA Technology 
(who provide R&D consulting in 
engineering, electronics, applied 
sciences & biotechnology) based in 
Cambridge, England handling financial 
management, commercial negotiations 
and intellectual properties rights, in 
addition to managing the laboratory 
comprising state-of-the-art technology 
and staffed by scientists, engineers 
and technicians. Mr Vincent was 
instrumental in negotiating PA’s biggest 
contract of work at that time.

In 1994, Mr Vincent was headhunted to 
the position of Chief Financial Officer 
of FACB Berhad, a main board public-
listed conglomerate based in Kuala 
Lumpur. He was responsible for raising a 
bond issue for their Karambunai Resort 
development and as part of his role, 
was seconded along with other senior 
executives to head up the massive 
USD1.2 billion investment in Cambodia 
involving banking, education, trading 
and casino businesses. 

In 1996, Mr Vincent was again 
headhunted to be general manager, 
corporate services for Royal Selangor 
Group, the world’s largest manufacturer 
and retailer of pewter and upmarket 
giftware with subsidiaries worldwide. 
In recognition of his leadership skills 
and improvements made to financial, 
operational & HR management, he 
was subsequently promoted to group 
general manager with top and bottom-
line responsibilities. During his tenure, 
the group was restructured and 
achieved its best ever-sales growth and 
profitability.

Mr Vincent currently runs his own 
business and management consulting 
practice providing strategic, financial 
management and business consulting 
services to client companies in 
Malaysia, Hong Kong and Indonesia. He 
also conducts training on financial and 
strategic management for his clients.

Operating from Kuala Lumpur, Mr 
Vincent has over 40 years of knowledge, 
exposure and management experience 
in auditing, consulting, financial and 
business management. 

Mr Vincent’s experiences cover 
numerous business segments, ranging 
from auditing and consultancy to 
the technology, manufacturing and 
retail sectors working for international 
organisations, listed companies and 
local multinationals. He has also worked 
and lived in several countries including 
the United Kingdom, Singapore, 
Malaysia, Indonesia, Hong Kong and 
Cambodia, providing him with deep 
understanding of the various cultural 
environments and business regimes, 
dealing with all levels from corporate 
leadership to the shop-floor.

He does not hold directorship in other 
public companies and listed corporations.

PANG NAM MING 
Male / 43 years of age / Malaysian
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Pang Nam Ming (“Mr Pang”) was 
appointed as the Independent Non-
Executive Director on 10 June 2015. He 
is the Chairman of Audit Committee and 
also a member of Nomination Committee 
and Remuneration Committee.
 
Mr. Pang is a member of Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants, fellow member 
of Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants, Professional member 
of The Institute of internal Auditors 
Malaysia, Certified Internal Auditor 
and Licensed Goods and Services Tax 
Agent in Malaysia.

Mr. Pang started his career with a 
Multi-National Company specialising in 
semiconductor assembly. Since then, 
he has held various senior finance 
positions in two groups of companies 
listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad.

Throughout his career of more than 16 
years, he was exposed to wide spectrum 
of areas which include strategic 
management, corporate finance, cash 
management, corporate governance, 
financial accounting, management 
accounting, costing, risk management 
& internal audit, human resource, direct/
indirect taxation, company secretarial 
and Management Information System. 
With his extensive commercial and 
corporate experience and exposure, 
he was instrumental in the successful 
listing of an advanced technology 
company on the then MESDAQ 
market (now known as Ace Market) of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In 
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order to leverage his experience and 
exposure gained throughout his years 
in commercial scene to scale further 
in his career, he joined Crowe Horwath 
Consulting (South) Sdn Bhd as a Director 
of Crowe Horwath’s consulting division. 
During his tenure with Crowe Horwath, 
Mr. Pang is significantly involved in 
overseeing and managing a portfolio 
of risk management, internal audit, 
management consulting, corporate 
finance, initial public offering as well as 
financial due diligence assignments.

Currently, he is the Director of 
NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd, which 
he founded, specialising in management 
consulting with focus on internal audit, 
risk management, transfer pricing and 
Malaysian Goods and Services Tax 
consulting.

He does not hold directorship in other 
public companies and listed corporations.

CHOy NGEE HOE
Male / 53 years of age / Malaysian
Executive Director / 
Chief Executive Officer

Mr Choy Ngee Hoe (“Mr Choy”) was 
appointed as the Executive Director on 
14 January 2005. He is also a member 
of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr Choy, a major shareholder, is our 
Chief Executive Officer and one (1) of 
the founder members of Visdynamics 
Research Sdn Bhd (“VRSB”), a 
subsidiary of our company. He is the 
leader of the team of talented and 
experienced engineers in VRSB. He 
oversees our management team as well 
as in charge of devising our corporate 
strategies and plans.

Mr Choy graduated from University 
of Malaya with a Bachelor of Science 
Degree in Mechanical Engineering 
(Honours) in 1988. He began his career 
in the semiconductor industry in 1988 
as a Process Engineer in a subsidiary 
of one (1) of the well-known Multi-
National Corporations (“MNCs”), 
namely National Semiconductors 
Corporation, in Melaka. Mr Choy was 
exposed to manufacturing and process 
technologies covering molding, strip/
laser marking, solder plating, trim and 
form, electrical tests, reliability test 
and all the way to final pack in various 
consumers, industrial and military/
aerospace products. Other than 
process related responsibilities such 
as yield improvement, cost savings, 
upgrades, productivity enhancement, 
equipment qualification, product 
transfer etc, he was also actively 
involved in new product development 
that required him to work with the 
corporate R&D team. His last position 
in National Semiconductor Corporation 
was Equipment Manager.

Mr Choy joined Telford as Operations 
Manager in 1994 and helped form 
and head TQS Manufacturing Sdn 
Bhd (“TQSSB”). TQSSB is a Tape and 
Reel (“TNR”) contract manufacturer. 
He was later promoted as Business 
Director in TQSSB where he was heavily 
involved in semiconductor equipment 
development.

In 1997, Telford acquired the 
backend equipment division of a 
major semiconductor Integrated 
Device Manufacturer (“IDM”), Texas 
Instruments Incorporated, where he 
was a member of the acquisition team. 
Telford equipment division was then 
spun off to become the Semiconductor 
Technologies & Instruments (“STI”) 
group of companies. Mr Choy was 
made President of STI Sdn Bhd 
(“STISB”), which he helped form. In 
1999, Telford and the STI group of 
companies were later united under ASTI 
Holding Ltd (“ASTI”) and listed on the 
Singapore Exchange Ltd, Singapore. 
Mr Choy also held directorship and 
chairmanship in various international 
ASTI subsidiaries and helped ASTI 
with another major acquisition, the 
Reel Service Ltd group of companies, 
making ASTI one of the world’s largest 
TNR contract manufacturers. He 

resigned from ASTI on 31 December 
2002 and subsequently set up VRSB 
with the rest of the promoters. 

He does not hold directorship in other 
public companies and listed corporations.

LEE CHONG LENG
Male / 52 years of age / Malaysian
Executive Director /
Chief Technical Officer

Mr Lee Chong Leng (“Mr Lee”) was 
appointed as the Executive Director on 
14 January 2005. 

Mr Lee is our CTO and one (1) of the 
founder members of VRSB. In his 
capacity, Mr Lee oversees our Vision 
Software, Mechanical Design, Machine 
Software and Equipment Assembly 
sections. In addition, he is also our 
R&D project leader, in which he is in 
charge of the overall R&D activities 
that we undertake. He is involved in the 
formulation of corporate strategies and 
implementation of the R&D policy. 

Mr Lee graduated with both Bachelor of 
Science Degree in Computer Science 
and Bachelor of Engineering Degree 
(Honours) in Electrical Engineering from 
University of New South Wales in 1989.

Upon his graduation, he joined as a 
Test Engineer in the subsidiary of one 
(1) of the well-known semiconductor 
MNCs, National Semiconductors 
Corporation, in Penang. During 1990 
to 1997, he acted as an R&D Engineer 
for Powermatic Sdn Bhd in Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor which specialised in the 
manufacturing of security system, time 
management system and computer 
peripherals. In 1997, he joined TQSSB, 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)
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a subsidiary of ASTI, which specialised 
in the TNR solution for semiconductor 
back-end industry, as Engineering 
Manager for two (2) years. In 1999, he 
was transferred to STISB, a subsidiary 
of ASTI, where he held the position as 
Engineering Manager.

Mr Lee resigned from ASTI and STISB 
on 15 November 2002 after which he 
and the rest of the promoters formed 
VRSB where he assumed the position as 
Engineering Manager and subsequently 
CTO. His vast experience and technical 
know-how throughout his years of 
employment history has gained him 
reputable recognition from the industry. 

He does not hold directorship in other 
public companies and listed corporations.

ONG HUI PENG
Female / 41 years of age / Malaysian
Executive Director / Machine Software 
Department Manager

Ms Ong Hui Peng (“Ms Ong”) was 
appointed as the Executive Director on 
14 January 2005. She is one (1) of the 
founder members of VRSB. Presently, 
she manages our Machine Software 
section and is responsible for all our 
machine software development projects. 
She contributes actively in R&D activities 
undertaken by us under the leadership 
of the CTO. Other than that, Ms Ong 
participates in the formulation and 
implementation of R&D strategies. She 
graduated from University of Malaya 
with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honours) in 
Computer Science in 1999.

Ms Ong started her career in the 
semiconductor industry in 1999 as a 
Software Engineer in STISB, a subsidiary 
of ASTI, specialising in machine software 

development, and later as a Section 
Head of Machine Software.

Ms Ong resigned from STISB on 15 
November 2002 after which she and 
the rest of the promoters formed VRSB 
where she assumed the post of Section 
Head of Machine Software Development 
and subsequently Machine Software 
Department Manager. Her specialisation 
in the software development and 
experience during her career has been 
recognised by the industry.

She does not hold directorship in other 
public companies and listed corporations.

WANG CHOON SEANG
Male / 54 years of age / Malaysian
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Wang Choon Seang (“Mr Wang”) 
was appointed as the Independent 
Non-Executive Director on 2 September 
2010. He is also a member of the Audit 
Committee and Nomination Committee 
and Remuneration Committee.

Mr Wang graduated from University 
of Malaya with a Bachelor’s Degree 
in Electrical/Electronic Engineering 
(Honour) in 1987. He also completed 
his executive business management 
program in Stanford University, California 
in 2002. 

Mr Wang has total of twenty seven (27) 
years of experience in semiconductor 
industry. He began his career in the 
semiconductor industry in 1987 as a 
Test Product Engineer in a subsidiary of 
one (1) of the well-known MNCs, namely 
National Semiconductors Corporation, 
in Melaka. He spent close to ten years 
in engineering function, where he 
developed his technical competency 

in semiconductor testing and product 
engineering. He developed various 
statistical testing methodologies, driving 
improvement in asset utilisation, yield, 
productivity, which leads to tremendous 
savings for the company. In 1994, he 
was sent to US for one year working 
assignment at the head quarter of the 
company in California, participated in 
both the new product development 
teams and business processes redesign 
program. 

Upon returning to Malaysia, he was 
promoted to lead both the engineering 
and operation function in 1996, as Test 
Operation/Engineering Manager. He 
successfully transformed the operation 
in achieving world class performance in 
terms of quality and cost, with innovative 
engineering methodologies and Total 
Productive Maintenance disciplines. He 
also pioneered and implemented the 
wafer ring strip testing manufacturing 
process for the company, achieving 
manufacturing excellence and shortest 
time to market for new product success.

In 2003, he was promoted to the 
Managing Director position, leading the 
entire plant, which consists of wafer 
sorting, wafer bumping, assembly 
and test operations, plus engineering 
development functions within one 
roof. His major contribution was the 
success in expanding the Melaka site 
by transferring the sister plant operation 
from Singapore, for both commercial 
and aero space products. It was 
completed timely within a very tight 
schedule, without any interruption to 
customer services. The Singapore site 
was closed and sold upon completion 
of transfer, which leads to significant 
savings for the company. He is well 
known in the company and industry, for 
his strategic and execution leadership 
qualities. Mr Wang resigned from 
National Semiconductor Corporation in 
May 2008, his last position held was Vice 
President.

Mr Wang registered and formed a new 
company called Testhub Sdn Bhd in July 
2008, providing consultancy and test 
engineering services to his clients.

He does not hold directorship in other 
public companies and listed corporations.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)



VisDynamics | Annual Report 201616

Other Information on Directors and Key Senior Management 
1. None of the Directors and Key Senior Management has family relationship with any Director and/or major 

shareholder of the Company.

2. None of the Directors and Key Senior Management has any conflict of interest with the Company.

3. None of the Directors and Key Senior Management has been convicted for offences within the past five 
(5) years other than traffic offences or any public sanction or penalty imposed on him/her by the relevent 
regulatory bodies during the financial year 2016.

4. All Directors had attended all the five (5) Board meetings of the Company held during the financial year ended 
31 October 2016.

PROFILES OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHONG WEN TAT
Male / 39 years of age / Malaysian
Chief Operating Officer

Mr Chong Wen Tat (“Mr Chong”) was 
appointed as the Chief Operating 
Officer of VRSB on 1st January 2017. 
He is one (1) of the founder members of 
VRSB. As a COO of VRSB, Mr Chong 
oversees the mechanical design, 
electrical design and manufacturing 
operations for efficiency, quality, and 
continuous improvement. Besides that, 
he is also Tray Product Line Manager 
who manages all the product design 
and development activities for tray 
based product under the leadership of 
the CTO. He graduated from University 
of Malaya with a Bachelor’s Degree 
(Honours) in Computer Aided Design/
Computer Aided Manufacturing (CAD/
CAM) in 2002.

Mr Chong started his career in the 
semiconductor equipment industry
back in 2002 as a Mechanical Design

Engineer in STISB, a subsidiary of ASTI, 
specialising in mechanical design.

Mr Chong resigned from STISB in 
November 2002 and joined VRSB as a 
Mechanical Design Engineer. In 2006, 
VRSB required the need to initiate the 
development of tray based product 
and promoted Mr Chong as a Product 
Line Manager to champion this product 
segment.

In the realm of R&D, Mr Chong and 
his team of inventors in VRSB were 
granted two Malaysian Patents for 
their inventions in 2009 & 2013. These 
inventions are essential building blocks 
in VRSB’s products since and have 
contributed invaluably to the success of 
our product in this competitive market.

He does not hold directorship in other 
public companies and listed corporations.

PEGGy CHEK HONG KIM
Female / 39 years of age / Malaysian
Chief Financial Officer

Ms Peggy Chek Hong Kim (“Ms Peggy”) 
joined VisDynamics on 2 February 2009 
as Finance & Administrative Manager 
and was the Acting Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company, and currently 
the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company.

Ms Peggy graduated from University 
of Malaya with a Bachelor’s degree 
(Honours) in Accountancy in 2001. She 
attained her Certificate of Meritorious 
Achievement from Malaysian Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants (MICPA) 
in 2003. She qualified as a chartered 
accountant in 2004 from the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants and has been 
the member of the above professional 
bodies until today. 

Ms Peggy started her career with 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers in 2001 as 
an audit associate and subsequently 
promoted as a senior associate. She 
then joined Jaycorp Berhad, a company 
listed on the main market of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad as the 
Corporate Finance Assistant Manager 
in 2004. In 2006, she joined National 
Semiconductor Sdn Bhd, a Multinational 
Company as Finance Section Manager. 
She then left and in 2009, she joined 
VisDynamics until today.

She does not hold directorship in other 
public companies and listed corporations.

• CHOy NGEE HOE, appointed as the Executive Director on 14 January 2005.
• LEE CHONG LENG, appointed as the Executive Director on 14 January 2005.
• ONG HUI PENG, appointed as the Executive Director on 14 January 2005.

The above key members of senior management are also members of the Board. Their profiles are set out on pages 14 to 15.



VisDynamics | Annual Report 2016 17

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance in facilitating the business of the Group. The Board is fully 
dedicated to continuously evaluating the Company’s corporate governance practices and procedures with a view to ensure the 
principles and recommendations in corporate governance as stipulated by the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012 
(“the Code”) are applied and adhered to safeguards shareholders’ investments and protect the interests of all stakeholders.

The Board is pleased to disclose below how the Company has applied the Principles and the extent to which the Company has 
complied with the Code during the financial year ended 31 October 2016. 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Principal Responsibilities of the Board

The Board as a whole leads the Company. The Board considers the interests of all its stakeholders in its conduct. The Board 
is primarily responsible for the development of the corporate objectives, the strategic direction, the performance and the 
corporate governance of the Group. The Board is also ultimately responsible for the identification and management of key 
risk, the adequacy and integrity of internal control systems, implementation of a shareholder communications policy and the 
succession planning of senior management.

The Board has on 6 February 2017 reviewed and updated the Board Charter which sets out its roles, functions, composition, 
operation and processes, having regard to principles of good corporate governance and requirements of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). 

The key reserved matters for the Board’s approval include:

- Conflict on interest issues relating to a substantial shareholder or Director.
- Material acquisitions and disposition of assets not in the ordinary course of business.
- Investments in capital projects.
- Authority levels.
- Treasury policies and bank mandate.
- Risk management policies.
- Key human resource issues.
- Performing Strategy review.
- Succession Planning.

The details of the above reserved matters are stated in the Board Charter which is available in the Company’s website (www.
vis-dynamics.com). 

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Independent Non-Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer 
(“CEO”) to ensure a balance of power and authority in the Board. Formal position descriptions for the Independent Non-
Executive Chairman and the CEO outlining their roles and responsibilities are set out in the Board Charter.

The role of Management is to support the Executive Directors and implement the running of the general operations and financial 
business of the Company, in accordance with the delegated authority of the Board.

The responsibility for the operation and administration of the Group is delegated by the Board to the Executive Directors.

As set out in Board Charter, the Board is responsible for:-

• reviewing and approving a strategic plan for the Group;
• overseeing the conduct of the Group’s Business to evaluate whether the Business is being properly managed;
• identifying principal risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks;
• reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the Group’s internal control systems and Management information systems, 

including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines;
• succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation of and where appropriate, replacing executive 

directors and Senior Management;
• establish a Nomination Committee composed, exclusively Non-Executive Directors, a majority of whom are independent, 

with the responsibility of proposing new nominees for the Board and for assessing Directors on an on-going basis;
• determining the remuneration of non-executive directors, with the individuals concerned abstaining from discussions of 

their own remuneration;
• ensuring that the Group adheres to high standards of ethics and corporate behavior;
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• developing and implementing an investor relations programme or Shareholder communications policy for the Group;
• ensuring that the Company’s financial statements are true and fair and conform with the accounting standards; and
• monitoring and reviewing management processes aimed at ensuring the integrity of financial and other reporting.

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to the Board Committees which operate within a clearly defined Terms of 
Reference approved by the Board.

The following diagram shows a brief overview of the Board Committees of the Company:

Board of Directors

Audit
Committee

Responsibilities

‐ Overseeing of the Group’s financial reporting

‐ Reviewing quarterly financial results, unaudited and audited financial 
statement

‐ Monitoring of internal control systems

‐ Monitor replated party transactions, review conflicts of interest that may 
arise and conduct that raises questions of management integrity

‐ Consider the appointment and re‐appointment of auditors and audit fee

Nomination
Committee

‐ Nominating of new Directors

- Undertaking annual assessment of the Board, the Board Committees 
and the contibution of each individual Director and also CFO

Remuneration 
Committee

‐ Recommending to the Board the remuneration of Executive Directors 
and Non‐Executive Directors

CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES IN DISCHARGING FIDUCIARy AND LEADERSHIP FUNCTIONS

The Board has discharged its responsibilities in the best interests of the Company. The following are among the key 
responsibilities of the Board:

(a) Reviewing and adopting the Company’s strategic plans

The Board has in place a strategy planning process, whereby CEO presents to the Board its recommended strategy, 
together with the proposed business plans, including new product introduction, for the Board’s review and approval. 
The Board will deliberate both Management’s and its own perspectives, and challenge the Management’s views and 
assumptions to ensure the best outcome.

(b) Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business

The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of the business and operations of the Group in respect of both its 
regulatory and commercial functions. He is supported by Management and the Executive Directors. 

Management’s performance, under the leadership of CEO, is assessed by the Board through monitoring the key 
performance indicators, financial performance and financial/non-financial information presented by the Management on 
quarterly basis. 

(c) Identifying principal risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate internal controls and mitigation measures

The AC, through guidance by the internal auditors, advises the Board on areas of high risk faced by the Group and the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the governance, risk and control structures and processes throughout the Group. The AC 
reviews the action plan implemented and makes relevant recommendations to the Board to manage risks. 

Further explanation on such process are disclosed in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 
32 to 35.
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(d) Succession Planning

The Board has entrusted the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee with the duty to review candidates 
for the Board and key management positions and to determine remuneration packages for these appointments, and to 
formulate nomination, selection, remuneration and succession policies for the Group. 

The Board, together with the CEO and the Management, put in place informal structure and practice to ensure key roles 
within the Group are supported by competent and caliber second-in-line to reduce the impact of abrupt departure of 
key personnel to the minimum possible. The succession planning of the Group is enhanced by the policies and standard 
operating procedures as well as job descriptions established for key business processes within the Group. In addition, 
during the review of the performance and strategies presented, at times, the Board reviews together with the CEO on the 
adequacy of caliber and competent human resources that are put in place for daily management and control of operations 
as well as proper execution of approved strategies.

(e) Overseeing the development and implementation of a shareholder communications policy for the Company

The Company strongly believes that effective and timely communication is essential in maintaining good relations with the 
shareholders, investors and investment community. To that end, the Board strives to provide shareholders and investors 
accurate, useful and timely information about the Company, its businesses and its activities via the timely release of 
quarterly financial results, press releases and announcements.  Whilst the Company endeavours to provide as much 
information as possible, it is aware of the legal and regulatory framework governing the release of material and price 
sensitive information. 

Formal Corporate Disclosure Policy are established and adopted on 6 February 2017 by the Board in ensuring 
communication that are timely, factual, accurate and complete. 

The Company has identified Mr Vincent Loh as the Chairman/Senior Independent Non-Executive Director to whom 
concerns of shareholders and other stakeholders may be conveyed. 

In addition to the above, shareholders and investors can make inquiries about investor relations matters with designated 
management personnel directly responsible for investor relations, via dedicated e-mail addresses available on the 
corporate website.

(f) Reviewing the adequacy and integrity of management information and internal control system of the Company

The Board is ultimately responsible for the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control system. Details 
pertaining to the Company’s internal control system and the reviews of its effectiveness are set out in the Statement on 
Risk Management and Internal Control of this Annual Report.

Corporate Disclosure, Whistleblowing Policy and Code of Ethics

The Board acknowledges and emphasises the importance for all Directors and employees in maintaining the highest standards 
of corporate governance practices.

The Group has established a Corporate Disclosure Policy on 6 February 2017 in order to communicate and disseminate 
material information impartially to stakeholders on timely, accurate, clear and complete manner in accordance with Listing 
Requirements and other applicable laws and regulations. The principles adopted by the Board on corporate disclosure are 
transparency and accountability, compliance with relevant laws and regulations, confidential and timely disclosure as well as 
fair and equitable access to information. Proper governance structure and processes are established within the Corporate 
Disclosure Policy to guide the proper disclosure of material information with confidentiality preservation within the requirements 
of the Board.

The Group has also established a Whistleblowing Policy on 6 February 2017 so that any officer or employee of the Group can 
report genuine concerns relating to any malpractice or improper conduct of the Group’s businesses. Disclosure can be made 
in writing to the Audit Committee (“AC”) Chairman. Any whistle blowing officer or employee acting in good faith is protected 
from retaliation for raising such allegations. Procedures are in place for investigations and appropriate follow-up action would 
be taken.

The Board is guided by the Directors’ Code of Ethic in discharging its oversight role effectively. The Code of Ethics requires 
all Directors to observe high ethical business standards, honesty and integrity and to apply these values to all aspects of the 
Groups’ business and professional practice and act in good faith in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

The Corporate Disclosure Policy and Whistleblowing Policy are available on the Company’s website at www.vis-dynamics.com 
while the Code of Ethics is incorporated in the Board Charter.
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Supply and Access to Information

All Directors are provided with the notice of agenda together with previous minutes of the previous meeting and other relevant 
information at least 5 days prior to the AC and Board Of Directors meeting. This is to ensure all Directors have sufficient time 
to obtain further explanation, where necessary, in order to be fully informed of the matters to be discussed during the meeting. 
The Board papers contain all relevant information and reports on financial, operational, corporate, regulatory, marketing, market 
developments, industry trend and minutes of meetings. These documents are comprehensive and include qualitative and 
quantitative information to enable the Board members to make informative decisions.

The Board has unrestricted and timely access to all information necessary for the discharge of its responsibilities. Besides 
direct and unrestricted access to Management, the Board could seek independent professional advice at the Company’s 
expenses on specific issues to enable it to discharge its duties in relation to the matters being deliberated. 

Company Secretaries

The Company Secretaries were entrusted to record the Board’s deliberations, in terms of the issues discussed and the 
conclusions. The minutes of the previous Board meeting is distributed to the Directors prior to the Board meeting for their 
perusal before confirmation of the minutes at the commencement of the following Board meeting. The Directors may comment 
or request clarification before the minutes are tabled for confirmation as a correct record of the proceedings of the meeting. 
The Company Secretaries also ensure that there is good information flow within the Board and between the Board, Board 
Committees and Management.

All Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the Company Secretaries in discharging their duties effectively.

The Board is regularly updated by the Company Secretaries on new changes to relevant legislation and Bursa Securities’ 
Listing Requirements and the resultant implications to the Company and the Board.

In delivering the above duties and responsibilities, the Board is supported by suitably qualified and competent Company 
Secretaries who are members of professional bodies namely the Malaysian Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators 
(MAICSA).

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretaries is a matter for the Board as a whole.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Members of the Board are required to make a declaration to that effect at the Board meeting in the event that they have 
interests in proposals being considered by the Board, including where such interest arises through close family members, in 
line with various statutory requirements on the disclosure of Director’s interest.

Any interested Directors would abstain from deliberations and decision of the Board on the subject proposal and, where 
appropriate, excuse themselves from being present in the deliberations.

STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION

As at the date of this statement, the Board consists of six (6) members, three (3) Executive Directors , one (1) Senior Independent 
Non-Executive Director and two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Board consists of qualified individuals with diverse skill-sets, experience and knowledge as well as age and gender in order 
to govern the Company to good effect. The Board receives the contribution of its Directors who bring a wide range of skills 
to bear in their deliberations. Such cognate specialisations such as various aspects of engineering, including mechatronics, 
electronics, software and vision inspection are related to the core activities of the Company. Supporting disciplines such as 
strategic planning, accounting, legal and regulatory affairs, corporate finance, banking and general management complements 
the engineering inputs and provide a wide base to assist management in governance, strategy formulation, risk management, 
financial and operational control, succession planning and compensation planning. 

The Board is satisfied that, through the annual performance appraisal of the Board, the Board Committees and individual 
directors, the current board composition fairly reflects the investment of minority shareholders in the Company and represents 
a mix of knowledge, skills and experience required to discharge the Board’s duties and responsibilities effectively as well as to 
ensure that no individual or small groups of individuals dominate the Board’s decision-making process.

A brief profile of each Director is presented on pages 13 to 15 of Annual Report.



VisDynamics | Annual Report 2016 21

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

Nomination Committee (“NC”)

The NC comprises the following members:

No. Name Designation

1 Vincent Loh (Chairman) Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
2 Pang Nam Ming Independent Non-Executive Director
3 Wang Choon Seang Independent Non-Executive Director

The NC consists of entirely Independent Non–Executive Directors and the Chairman of the NC is the Senior Independent 
Director of the Company which is in compliance with Recommendation 2.1 of the Code.

The NC is responsible for making recommendation relating to any new appointments to the Board. In making those 
recommendations, the NC will take into account the individual’s skill, expertise, knowledge, professionalism, integrity, 
experience and level of other commitments. Any new nomination received is put to the full Board for assessment and approval.

The Board acknowledges the importance of boardroom diversity and the recommendation of the Code pertaining to the 
establishment of a gender diversity policy. Hence, the Board has always been in support of the Company’s policy of non-
discrimination on the basis of race, age, religion and gender. The Board encourages a dynamics and diverse composition 
by nurturing suitable and potential candidates equipped with competency, skills, experience, character, time commitment, 
integrity and other qualities in meeting future needs of the Company. Presently, there is one (1) female director in the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Constitution, the directors who are appointed by the Board during the financial period 
before an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) are subject to re-election by shareholders at the next AGM to be held following their 
appointments. The Constitution also provided that at least one-third (1/3) of the Directors for the time being, or if their number 
is not multiple of three, the number nearest to one-third (1/3), be subject to re-election by rotation at each AGM provided always 
that each Director shall retire at least once every three (3) years but shall be eligible for re-election. 

The new Director(s) duly appointed by the Board are then recommended for re-election at the AGM. 

Pursuant to Paragraph 69 of the Company’s Constitution, Mr Wang Choon Seang and Mr Vincent Loh shall retire by rotation 
and be eligible for re-election at this AGM.

Board Evaluation

On annual basis, the Company Secretary circulates to each director with the relevant assessment and review forms/
questionnaires in relation to the board evaluation with sufficient time for all the directors to complete in advance of the meeting 
of the NC in order for the Company Secretary to collate the assessment results for the NC to review.

The Board, through the NC, had established criteria to ensure board composition and diversity with right mix of knowledge, skills 
and competency for which performance evaluation are to be based upon.  The criteria adopted for the board’s performance 
evaluation includes board mix and composition, directors’ training, independence, quality of information, board proceedings, 
board’s roles and responsibilities, board chairman’s roles and responsibilities. Annual board review was conducted by the NC 
to assess and evaluate the board effectiveness based on the above criteria during the financial year. 

In addition, peer review of the knowledge and skill sets of fellow directors is required to be performed by each director based 
on evaluation criteria established, which includes integrity, professionalism, knowledge, performance and participation during 
board meetings, contribution and board relationship. Peer review of directors was conducted by the NC during the financial 
year. To further discharge its duties, the NC assessed the performance of the Chief Financial Officer through performance 
evaluation form completed by her. During the assessment, CEO is invited to comment on her performance with interview 
session held by NC with the Chief Financial Officer.

As for the performance evaluation of board committees, the Board assesses the performance of the AC, NC and Remuneration 
Committee based on the recommended evaluation criteria adopted from Corporate Governance Guide issued by Bursa Malaysia 
Berhad, which includes committees’ composition, contribution to the board’s decision making, expertise, appointment as well 
as timeliness and quality of communication and minutes. Review of the performance of the board committees was conducted 
by the NC during the financial year.
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Based on the above assessments, the NC was satisfied with the existing Board composition and was of the view that all 
Directors and Board Committees of the Company had discharged their responsibilities in a commendable manner and had 
performed competently and effectively. All assessments and evaluations carried out by the NC in the discharge of all its 
functions were properly documented. 

The Board is of the view that its present size and composition is optimal based on the Group’s operations and that it reflects a 
fair mix of financial, technical and business experiences that are important to the stewardship of the Group.

Activities of NC

The NC has worked to ensure that the right balance of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity is reflected in the composition 
of the Board. The NC assisted the Board in assessing the contributions of each individual Director including that of the Chief 
Financial Officer, who is primarily responsible for the financial management of the Company. During the financial year ended 31 
October 2016, the NC held one meeting and assessed the Board Committees and individual Directors. The NC, in discharging 
its functions and duties, carried out the following activities during the financial year:-

• reviewed the term of reference of NC;
• assessed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each individual Director;
• reviewed and assessed the size, composition and the required mix of skills of the Board and Board Committees;
• reviewed and assessed the character, experienced, integrity, competence and time commitment of each Director and the 

Chief Financial Officer;
• reviewed the re-election and re-appointment of retiring Directors; 
• assessed and evaluated the level of independence of Independent Directors; and 
• reviewed the term of office of the Audit Committee and each of its members to determine whether the AC and the member 

have carried out their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.

The full details of the NC’s Terms of Reference are published in the Company’s website.

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

The primary purpose of the RC is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight duty to shareholders by ensuring that the Company 
has coherent remuneration policies that fairly and responsibly reward individuals having regard to performance, the risk 
management, the law and the highest standards of governance.

The RC comprises the following members:

Vincent Loh  - Chairman, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Wang Choon Seang – Independent Non-Executive Director
Pang Nam Ming - Independent Non-Executive Director
Choy Ngee Hoe – CEO, Executive Director

The RC consists of majority Non–Executive Directors.

The full details of the RC’s Terms of Reference are published in the Company’s website.

The RC is responsible for recommending the remuneration packages of Executive Directors to the Board for its approval.  
Individual Directors shall abstain from decisions in respect of their individual remuneration. The RC recommends the Directors’ 
fee payable to Non-Executive Directors of the Board and are deliberated and decided at the Board before it is presented at the 
AGM for shareholders’ approval.

The RC held a meeting during the financial year ended 31 October 2016 to review the proposed remuneration package of 
Executive Directors and with such recommended remuneration packages and fees were submitted to the Board for approval.

The Company’s Remuneration Policy recognises the need for the Company to attract, motivate and retain qualified members 
of the Board and Management as well as to align the interests of the Board with the interests of the Company’s shareholders. 
As such, the Remuneration Policy adopted by the Board embodies the following principles:

• Providing fair, consistent and competitive rewards to attract and retain high calibre executives.
• Motivating the Company’s Directors and executives to achieve superior performance.
• A remuneration framework that incorporates both short and long term incentives linked to Company performance and total 

shareholder return. 
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The details of the directors’ remuneration are as follows:–

Categories of Remuneration
 

GROUP COMPANy

Executive
Directors
RM ‘000

Non-Executive 
Directors
RM ‘000

Executive 
Directors
RM ‘000

Non-Executive 
Directors
RM ‘000

Director Fees NIL 156 NIL 156
Salary, Bonus and Incentive 770 NIL 605 NIL
Meeting Allowance NIL 9 NIL 9
Employee Provident Fund 101 NIL 91 NIL
Benefit-in-kind 2 NIL NIL NIL
Total 873 165 696 165

Remuneration Band
 

GROUP COMPANy

Executive
Directors
No. of Directors

Non-Executive 
Directors
No. of Directors

Executive 
Directors
No. of Directors

Non-Executive 
Directors
No. of Directors

Less than RM 50,000 NIL 2 NIL 2
RM 50,000 to RM 99,999 NIL 1 NIL 1
RM 100,000 and more 3 NIL 2 NIL
Total 3 3 2 3

The Board feels that disclosure of total directors’ remuneration in the above bandwidth is sufficient for security reasons.

REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE

Annual Assessment of Independence

The Board, through the NC, assesses the independence of Independent Directors annually. The criteria for assessing the 
independence of an Independent Director include the relationship between the Independent Director and the Company and its 
involvement in any significant transaction with the Company.

Based on the above assessment in 2016, the Board is generally satisfied with the level of independence demonstrated by all 
the Independent Directors, and their ability to bring independent and objective judgement to board deliberations.

Tenure of Independent Directors

The Board has adopted a nine(9)-year policy for Independent Non-Executive Directors. An Independent Director may continue 
to serve on the Board subject to the director’s re-designation as a Non-Independent Director. Otherwise, the Board will justify 
and seek shareholders’ approval at the AGM in the event it retains the director as an Independent Director.

None of the Independent Non-Executive Directors served more than nine (9) years in the Company.

Separation of the positions of the Chairman and CEO

The positions of the Chairman and the CEO are held by two different individuals. Vincent Loh, a Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director, is the Chairman whereas Mr Choy Ngee Hoe, is the CEO.

The Chairman is responsible for the governance, orderly conduct and effectiveness of the Board while the Group Managing 
Director is responsible for managing the Group’s business operations and implementation of policies and strategies approved 
by the Board. The distinct and separate roles of the Chairman and CEO, with a clear division of responsibilities, ensure a balance 
of power and authority, such that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision-making. The roles and responsibilities of 
the Chairman and CEO are embodied in the Board Charter, which is published on the Company’s website.

In the event that the positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO are held by the same person, the Board must comprise 
a majority of independent directors where the Chairman of the Board is not an independent director. An explanation and 
justification will also be provided in the Annual Report of the Company.
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FOSTER COMMITMENT

Time Commitment

The Board meets at least five (5) times a year or more when circumstances require. Where appropriate, decisions are also made 
by way of circular resolutions in between scheduled meetings during the financial year.

The Board meetings have a pre-determined set of matters for the Board’s review. Among these are the financial performance 
of the Group and the Business Operations Review of the Group. All Board papers for consideration and discussion will be 
circulated to members at least five (5) days prior to the meetings to ensure Directors have sufficient time to study them and 
would be prepared for meaningful discussions.

The Board papers include, among others, the following documents or information:

• Reports of meetings of all committees of the Board including matters requiring the full Board’s deliberation and approval;
• Performance reports of the Group, which include information on financial, strategic business issues, major operational 

issues and updates; and
• Board papers for other matters for discussion/approval.

To ensure that the Directors have the time to focus and fulfil their roles and responsibilities effectively, the Directors must 
not hold directorships at more than five (5) public listed companies and shall notify the Chairman before accepting any new 
directorship.

The company secretary issues a notice of meeting prior to each Board meeting together with relevant Board papers. For any 
corporate announcement for release to Bursa Securities. Management and professional advisors may be invited by the Board, 
if there is a need, for information or advice on matters that require expert knowledge.

The Board is satisfied with the level of time commitment given by the Directors towards fulfilling their roles and responsibilities 
as Directors of the Company. This is evidenced by the attendance record of the Directors at Board Meetings, as set out in the 
table below.

No. Name Designation No. of Board Meetings Attended %

1 Choy Ngee Hoe CEO, Executive Director 5/5 100
2 Lee Chong Leng CTO, Executive Director 5/5 100
3 Ong Hui Peng Executive Director 5/5 100
4 Vincent Loh Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100
5 Wang Choon Seang Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100
6 Pang Nam Ming Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100

The Board has also agreed for the 50.0% minimum attendance requirement to be adopted for Board Committees. Overall, all 
Committee members complied with the attendance threshold.

Directors’ Training

Directors are also encouraged to participate in seminars and/or conferences organised by the relevant regulatory authorities, 
professional bodies and commercial entities providing training. This is part of their Continuous Education Programme to keep 
abreast with relevant new developments on a continuous basis on the general regulatory, economic, industry and technical 
developments to further enhance their skills, knowledge and experience as well as update themselves on new developments 
in the business environment in order to fulfill their duties as Directors.

There were also briefings by the External Auditors and the Internal Auditors and the Company Secretary on the relevant updates 
on statutory and regulatory requirements from time to time during the Board meetings.

Apart from the updates on the industry trend and statutory requirements, all Executive Directors also being updated with the 
latest strategy setting method via in-house briefings conducted from time to time by the CEO. 

In addition, members of the Board are well informed of various development programmes and encouraged to attend these 
programmes to keep abreast with the development in the industry and relevant regulatory updates in furtherance of their duties.

The Directors are also encouraged to evaluate their own training needs on a continuous basis and to determine on the 
relevant programmes, seminars, briefings or dialogues available that would best enable them to enhance their knowledge and 
contributions to the Board.
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In 2016, all Directors either attended or conducted trainings, seminars, conferences and international conventions to gain 
greater insight into the industry, and be updated of the latest regulatory and technological developments relevant to the Group’s 
business. The Chairman conducted professional training for corporate directors and managers during the financial year.

Details of training conducted/ attended by Directors during the financial year ended 31 October 2016 are as follows:

Director Trainings/ Seminars/ Conferences

Vincent Loh Conducted :
1. Financial Language in the Boardroom
 Training for directors of government and public listed companies conducted 

over 2 days on financial responsibilities for directors. Ran 2 courses in 2016 on 
behalf of the Malaysian Directors Academy (MINDA)

2. Financial Management for Directors, Government of Bhutan
 Conducted the above 1-day course for Druk Holdings Ltd, the investment arm 

of the government of Bhutan relating to directors’ corporate governance.

3. Job of the General Manager
 Conducted 1-day financial management training for newly appointed general 

managers conducted for the Malaysian Institute of Management (2 times in 
2016)

4. Corporate Reporting – Integrated Reporting
 Conducted 1 –day course “The Future of Annual Reporting for Listed 

Companies” for Agrobank Bhd.

5. Finance for Non-Finance Managers
 2-day programme of financial analysis and management conducted twice for 

Malaysian Institute of Management

Wang Choon Seang Attended :
1. SME Act and TPPA Agreement by SME Corp
2. Successful SMEs and Intellectual Property Rights by SME Corp
3. Financial Stability and Payment Reports by Bank Negara Malaysia
4. What Does Factory 4.0 looks like? By Mentor Graphics

Pang Nam  Ming  Attended :
1. Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia Conference
2. Budget Seminar
3. TPPA Seminar- What’s in for Accountants?
4. GST Impact on Licensed Manufacturing Warehouses (LMWs) and Free Industrial 

Zones (FIZ)
5. GST Conference 2016 – the Future of Economic Growth
6. The Companies Bill 2015 – An Outline & Comparison
7. Learn How to Analyse the GST Audit File (GAF) – Hands On Training
8. GST- Practical Issues and recent Developments

Choy Ngee Hoe Conducted :
1. Company Profile and Business Outlook  for RHB Invest, The Edge, Hong Leong 

Bank, Maybank Asset Management and Allianz.

Attended :
1. Semicon China
2. Semicon West in United States of America
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Director Trainings/ Seminars/ Conferences

Ong Hui Peng Attended :
1. Mitsubishi Automation Solutions Seminar

Lee Chong Leng Attended :
1. Current and future 3D imaging methods and applications

UPHOLD INTEGRITy IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

Compliance with applicable financial reporting standards

In presenting the annual financial statements and quarterly results, the Board aims to present a balanced and comprehensible 
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

The AC assists the Board in examining information to be disclosed to ensure the completeness, accuracy and authenticity of 
such information in compliance with the relevant accounting standards.

The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and the Company to 
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Assessment of suitability and Independence of external auditors

The AC is responsible for reviewing audit, recurring audit-related and non-audit services provided by the external auditors. 
These recurring audit-related and non-audit services comprise regulatory reviews and reporting and compliance services, if 
any.

The terms of engagement for services of the external auditors, which includes, amongst others, the scope of coverage, the 
responsibilities of the external auditors, confidentiality and independence are reviewed by the AC prior to submission to the 
Board for approval.

The AC has reviewed the provision of non-audit services by the external auditors during the year and concluded that there is 
no provision of non-audit services by the external auditors during the financial year. 

The role and responsibilities of the AC in relation to the external and internal auditors are prescribed in the AC’s Terms of 
Reference.

Prior to the commencement of the external audit engagement, the external auditors present the Audit Planning Memorandum 
to the AC whereby the engagement and reporting requirements, audit approach, risk assessments and areas of audit emphasis, 
fraud consideration, independence declaration, materiality, engagement team, audit timetable and budget are tabled to the AC 
to review. Upon completion of the audit engagement, the external auditors present Audit Review to the AC on the significant 
audit findings, deficiencies in internal control and status of the audit. In addition, the AC met privately with the external auditors 
without the presence of the executive directors and management at the same meeting to encourage two-way communication 
of the information and views and for the external auditors to freely express their opinion without undue pressure and to seek 
their confirmation of their independence.

Having considered the external auditors had performed audit services to the Company for several years and had put in place 
an internal quality control processes, the Board believes that the external auditors is suitable and able to deliver the assurance 
engagement professionally and diligently with sufficient level of independence under the relevant laws and regulations.

The AC had adopted an external auditors’ performance and independent checklist to evaluation the external auditors’ suitability, 
resources, competency and independence. 

Having satisfied itself with Messrs Adam & Co’s performance, the AC will recommend their re-appointment to the Board, upon 
which the shareholders’ approval will be sought at the AGM.

Based on the AC’s assessment of the external auditors, the Board satisfied with the independence, quality of service and 
adequacy of resources provided by the external auditors in carrying out the annual audit for financial year 2016. In view thereof, 
the Board has recommended the re-appointment of the external auditors for the approval of shareholders at the twelfth AGM. 
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RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISKS

Sound framework to manage risks

The Board oversees, reviews and monitors the operation, adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls.

The Board defines the level of risk appetite, approving and overseeing the operation of the Group’s Risk Management 
Framework, assessing its effectiveness and reviewing any major/ significant risk facing the Group.

The AC reviews the risk management process of the Group and advises the Board on areas of high risk faced by the Group and 
the adequacy of compliance and control throughout the organisation. The AC also reviews the action plan implemented and 
makes relevant recommendations to the Board to manage residual risks.

The Company continues to maintain and review its internal control procedures to ensure the protection of its assets and its 
shareholders’ investment.

The summary of oversights and activities of AC involving the internal audit is set out on pages 29 to 31 of the Audit Committee 
Report.

Internal audit function

The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to a professional services firm to assist the AC in discharging its duties 
and responsibilities in respect of reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control 
systems.

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control as included on pages 32 to 35 of this Annual Report provides the 
overview of the internal control framework adopted by the Company during the financial year ended 31 October 2016.

ENSURE TIMELy AND HIGH QUALITy DISCLOSURE

Corporate disclosure policy and procedures

The Company has put in place a Corporate Disclosure Policy with the objective to ensure communications to the public 
are timely, factual, accurate, complete, broadly disseminated and where necessary, filed with regulators in accordance with 
applicable laws. 

The Board and Management ensure timely dissemination of information on the Company’s performance and other matters 
affecting shareholders’ interests to shareholders and investors through appropriate announcement (where necessary), quarterly 
announcements, relevant circulars, press releases and distribution of annual reports.

A Corporate Disclosure Policy was approved by the Board which sets out the policies and procedures for disclosure of material 
information of the Group. The management of the corporate disclosure is delegated to the Corporate Disclosure Committee with 
responsibilities, authorities and resources clearly defined. Proper procedures for disclosing material information and responses 
to market rumour are defined in the policy for execution by the Corporate Disclosure Committee. It also includes an internal 
control practice procedure on confidentiality to ensure that confidential information is handled properly by relevant parties to 
avoid leakage and improper use of such information. This policy is applicable to all employees and Directors of the Group.

Leverage on information technology for effective dissemination of information

The Company’s website (Website address: http://visdynamics.com) provides all relevant corporate information and it is 
accessible by the public. The Company’s website includes share price information, all announcements made by the Company, 
Annual Reports, financial results, research reports, newspaper cuttings etc.

Through the Company’s website, the stakeholders are able to direct queries to the Company.

STRENGTHEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE COMPANy AND SHAREHOLDERS

Encourage shareholders participation at general meetings

The AGM and Extraordinary General Meeting are the principal forums for dialogue with private shareholders and institutional 
investors that allow the stakeholders to have a clear and complete picture of the Group’s performance and position. These are 
crucial mechanisms in shareholders’ communication for the Company.



VisDynamics | Annual Report 201628

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

It is the Company’s practice to send the Notice of AGM and related papers to shareholders at least twenty-one (21) days before 
the meeting date. The AGM is generally well attended whilst shareholders have direct access to the Board and are given the 
opportunity to participate and vote on resolutions. The Board encourages participation at general meetings and shareholders are 
invited to ask questions about the resolutions being proposed at the AGM.

The Company allows a shareholder to appoint a proxy who may not be a member of the Company. If the proxy is not a member 
of the Company, he/she need not be an advocate, an approved company auditors or a person approved by the Registrar of 
Companies.

To further promote participation of members through proxies, which in line with the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, 
the Company had amended its Constitution to include explicitly the right of proxies to speak at general meetings.

The external auditors are also present to provide professional and independent clarification on issues and concerns raised by 
the shareholders during the meeting.

In compliance of the Listing Requirements, all resolutions put forth for shareholders’ approval at the Twelfth Annual General 
Meeting to be held on 23 March 2017 are to be voted by way of poll voting.

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

The Board is satisfied that the Company has in 2016 complied with the principles and recommendations of the Code.

This CG statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 6 February 2017.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITy STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that:

i  the annual audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company are drawn up in accordance with applicable 
approved accounting standards in Malaysia, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2016 and the Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Securities so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company for the financial 
year; and

ii. proper accounting and other records are kept which enable the preparation of the financial statements with reasonable 
accuracy and taking reasonable steps to ensure that appropriate systems are in place to safeguard the assets of the Group 
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

In the preparation of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October 2016, the Directors have adopted 
appropriate accounting policies and have applied them consistently in the financial statements with reasonable and 
prudent judgements and estimates. The Directors are also satisfied that all relevant approved accounting standards have 
been followed in the preparation of the financial statement.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

(i) Utilisation of Proceeds

The proceeds raised from the private placement completed on 22 April 2015 has been fully utilised during the financial 
year ended 31 October 2016.

(ii) Audit and Non-Audit Fees

The amount of audit and non-audit fees paid to external auditors and their affiliates by the Group and the Company 
respectively for the financial year are as follows:

Company : RM 12,000.00
Group : RM 25,000.00

There were no non-audit fees which were related to corporate tax compliance services and other advisory services 
rendered to the Company and its subsidiary by the Company’s auditors.

(iii) Material Contracts or Loans involving Directors, Chief Executive or Major Shareholders

There were no material contracts or loans between the Company and its subsidiary that involve directors’, chief executive’s 
or major shareholders’ interests.

(iv) Recurrent Related Party Transaction (“RRPT”) of Revenue or Trading Nature

There were no shareholders’ mandate obtained in respect of RRPT of Revenue or Trading Nature entered into by the Group 
during the financial year ended 31 October 2016.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The principle objective of the AC is to assist the Board in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities and overall responsibilities for 
Group’s activities.

The current members of AC are as follows:-

Pang Nam Ming - Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director
Vincent Loh - Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Wang Choon Seang - Independent Non-Executive Director

The full details of the AC’s Terms of Reference are published on the Company’s website (http://visdynamics.com).

Summary of Work During the Year

The work carried out by the AC in discharging its duties and functions with respect to their responsibilities during the financial 
year were summarised as follows:

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The AC reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements required by Bursa Securities for recommendation to the Board 
for approval. The review focused on changes in accounting policies and practices, major judgemental and risk areas, significant 
adjustments resulting from the audit, the going concern assumption, compliance with accounting standards, compliance with 
Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities and other legal requirements. 

The AC keeps itself apprise of changes in accounting policies and guidelines through regular updates by the external auditor.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The AC discussed with the external auditors the audit plan, and the report on the audit of the year-end financial statements; 
reviewed the external auditor’s management letter and Management’s responses thereto; and reviewed the External Auditor’s 
objectivity and independence. In assessing independence, the AC reviewed the fees and expenses paid to the External Auditor, 
including fees paid for non-audit services during the year. The AC is of the opinion that the auditor’s independence has not been 
compromised and is suitable for re-appointment. The AC held a private session with the external auditor during the financial 
year to seek feedbacks from the external auditors on any difficulty encountered during the audit; to highlight major financial 
and control issues encountered; to seek confirmation on its independency and objectivity and to assess its competency and 
resources.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The AC reviewed the adequacy of the scope of internal audit work and its audit programmes; reviewed the major findings during 
the year and Management’s responses thereto; reviewed the progress of action plans implementation by the Management; 
ensured the adequacy of the independence, competency and resource sufficiency of the outsourced internal audit function; 
reviewed the internal audit fees proposed by the outsourced internal auditors.

RELATED PARTy TRANSACTIONS

The AC reviewed related party transactions entered into by the Group and any conflict of interest situation that may arise within 
the Group  and ensured all transactions are at arms length’s basis. There was no material related party transactions during the 
financial year.

KEy BUSINESS RISKS

The AC reviewed the adequacy of the control activities undertaken by the Management on key business risks identified during 
review of Group’s operation tabled by the Chief Financial Officer.

OTHERS

The AC has full access to and co-operation of Management. The AC also has full discretion to invite any director or executive 
officer to attend its meetings, and has been given adequate resources to discharge its functions. The AC had met with the 
External Auditors without the presence of Management. 
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The AC has reviewed the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control and Audit Committee Report in accordance 
with the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control – Guidelines for 
Directors of Listed Issuer, for inclusion into the Annual Report.

The AC has also reviewed the revised terms of reference of the AC to ensure the terms of reference are in line with the Code 
and Listing Requirements before recommending to the Board for approval.

Members and Attendance of the AC

The AC held five (5) meetings during the financial year ended 31 October 2016. The details of the attendance of the Committee 
are as follows:

No. Composition of AC Designation No. of Meetings 
attended

%

1. Pang Nam Ming Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100 %

2. Vincent Loh Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100 %
3. Wang Choon Seang Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100%

The meetings were conducted with the quorum of two (2) AC members and the majority of AC members presented at the 
meeting were Independent Non-Executive Directors. 

The meetings were appropriately structured through the use of agendas, which were distributed together with the minutes of 
the previous meeting and relevant papers and reports to the members at least five (5) days before the meetings with sufficient 
time allowed for review by the members for the proper discharge of its duties and responsibilities diligently and effectively in 
compliance with the Listing Requirements and its terms of reference. The AC may inspect the minutes of the Committee at the 
Registered Office or such other place as may be determined by the AC.

The Senior Management, Finance and Administrative Manager, Senior Accounts Executive and a representative of its external 
and internal auditors were also invited to attend and brief the members on specific issues during the AC Meeting.

In addition, the AC had meetings with the external auditors without the presence of the Management where they are given the 
opportunity to raise any concern or professional opinion and thus, to be able to exert its functions independently.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the AC and is responsible, together with the Chairman, to draft the agenda and 
circulating it prior to each meeting. 

Internal Audit Functions and Activities

The principal role of the internal auditors is to undertake independent, regular and systematic reviews of the systems of internal
control so as to provide reasonable assurance that such systems continue to operate satisfactorily and effectively.

The internal auditors carry out audit assignments based on an audit plan that was reviewed and approved by the AC. The 
reports of the audits undertaken were forwarded to Management for attention and necessary action and presented to the AC 
for deliberation and approval.

The internal audit review on the system of internal controls was outsourced to an independent professional firm. The outsourced 
internal auditors report directly to the AC. The terms of engagement of the outsourced internal auditors is governed by formal 
engagement letter reviewed by the AC and includes engagement objectives and scope, reporting structure, internal audit 
methodology, independence and objectivity, authorities and responsibilities.

The activities carried out by the internal auditors during the financial year ended 31 October 2016 include:

• Developed the internal audit plan for year 2017;
• performance of follow-up audit on Sales and Procurement, audit and follow-up audit on Finance and Corporate Governance 

review;
• issuance of reports on the results of the internal audit review, identifying key weaknesses with suggested recommendations 

to management for further action; and
• attended AC meetings to table and discuss the internal audit reports.
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The relevant Management members were made responsible for ensuring that corrective actions on reported weaknesses were 
taken within the required timeframes.

The AC had reviewed and assessed the internal audit function of the Company and is of the view that the scope, functions 
(including independence), competency, resources, authorities granted to the outsourced internal audit function as well as 
internal audit program and processes are adequate to provide the AC with reasonable assurance that governance, risk and 
control structures and processes of the Group is adequate and effective and that the results of the internal audit program, 
processes or investigation undertaken is adequately communicated to the AC and appropriate actions are taken on the 
recommendations of the internal auditors.

The cost incurred for the internal audit function in respect of the financial year ended 31 October 2016 amounted to RM23,320.

Further details of the Internal Audit Function are set out in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 
32 to 35 of this Annual Report.

The full detail of the AC’s Terms of Reference are published on the Company’s website (http://visdynamics.com). 
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT &
INTERNAL CONTROL
INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Rule 15.26(b) of Bursa Ace Market Listing Requirements in relation to requirement to prepare statement about 
the state of internal control of the listed issuer as a group, and as guided by the Statement on Risk Management and Internal 
Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Guidelines”), the Board of Visdynamics (collectively with its subsidiaries, 
“the Group”) is pleased to present the statement on the state of the internal controls of the Group for the financial year ended 
31 October 2016.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board affirms its overall responsibility for maintaining a sound risk management and internal control systems and for 
reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness so as to safeguard all its stakeholders’ interests and protecting the Group’s assets. 
The Board has delegated these aforementioned responsibilities to the AC whereby the AC is assigned with the duty, through 
its terms of reference approved by the Board, to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management 
process and recommend further enhancement measures to the Board. Through the AC, the Board is kept informed of all 
significant control issues brought to the attention of the AC by the Management, the internal audit function and the external 
auditors.

The system of internal controls covers inter-alia, risk assessment as well as financial, operational, environmental and compliance 
controls. However, in view of the limitations that are inherent in any system of internal controls, the system of internal controls 
is designed to manage, rather than to eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives. Accordingly, the 
system of internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement of losses 
and fraud.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises risk management as an integral part of system of internal control and good management practice in 
pursuit of its strategic objectives. The Board maintains an on-going commitment for identifying, evaluating and managing 
significant risks faced by the Group systematically during the financial year under review. The Board had put in place a Risk 
Management Policy, as the governance structure and processes for the risk management on enterprise wide, in order to embed 
the risk management practice into all level of the Group and to manage key business risks faced by the Group adequately and 
effectively as second line-of-defense. The duties for the identification, evaluation and management of the key business risk are 
delegated to the CEO.

The Risk Management Policy established lays down the risk management’s objectives and processes established by the Board 
with formalised governance structure of the risk management activities of the Group established as follows:

Clear roles and responsibilities of the Board, the AC, Risk Management Committee (headed by the CEO), operational 
management (as risk owners), and internal audit function are defined in the Risk Management Policy. In particular, the roles and 
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee in relation to the risk management are as follows:

(a) establish a risk committee of the management which is used as a forum for the following:
(i) to formulate business rules, processes and structures to meet the Group standard policy and implementation needs;
(ii) to implement the processes and structures;
(iii) to ensure that processes and structures comply with risk parameters and controls;

(iv) to initiate and conduct business within agreed risk parameters and business rules.
(b) recommend Risk Management Policy to the Board; 
(c) constant monitoring to ensure Risk Management Policy is implemented accordingly;
(d) ensuring that periodical risk report is submitted accurately and in a timely manner to the Board.

The Board

Audit Committee

Internal Audit Function

Risk Management Committee

Risk Owners
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT &
INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’d)
In addition, the operational management team, i.e. the heads of departments/divisions, is designated as risk owners within their 
area of expertise and operational responsibilities with the following roles and responsibilities:

(a) manage the risks of the business processes under his/her control;
(b) identify risks and evaluate existing controls. If controls deemed ineffective, inadequate or non-existent, to report to the 

Risk Management Committee and assist with the development of the management action plans and implement these 
action plans;

(c) assist the Risk Management Committee with the continuous monitoring, update of the management action plans and the 
status of these plans.

Systematic risk management process is stipulated in the Policy, whereby each step of the risk identification, risk analysis, 
control identification, risk treatment and control activities are laid down for application by the Risk Management Committee and 
the operational management. Risk parameters are also predetermined in accordance to the Group’s risk appetite to enhance 
risk management process.  

Risk analysis, at gross and residual level, are guided by the likelihood rating and impact rating established by the Board that are 
stipulated in the Risk Management Policy. Based on the risk management process, key risk registers were compiled by the Risk 
Management Committee, with relevant key risks identified rated based on the agreed upon risk rating. The key risk registers are 
used for the identification of high residual risks which is above the risk appetite of the Group that require the Management and 
the Board’s immediate attention and risk treatment as well as for future risk monitoring.

It is important to monitor risks proactively, therefore, the Management is required to review the key risk registers of key operating 
subsidiaries and assessment of emerging risks identified at strategic and operational level on a routine basis or on more 
frequent basis if circumstances required and to report to the Board on the results of the review and assessment. 

At strategic level, business plans, business strategies and investment proposals with risks consideration are formulated by 
the CEO and/or Senior Management and presented to the Board for review and deliberation to ensure proposed plans and 
strategies are in line with the Group’s risk appetite. In addition, specific strategic and key operational risks are highlighted and 
deliberated by the AC and/or the Board during the review of the financial performance of the Group in the scheduled meetings.

As first-line-of-defense, respective heads of departments/divisions (i.e. risk owners) are responsible for managing the risks 
under their responsibilities. Risk owners are responsible for effective and efficient operational monitoring and management 
by way of maintaining effective internal controls and executing risk and control procedures on a day-to-day basis. Changes 
in the key operational risks or emergence of new key business risks are identified through daily operational management and 
controls and review of financial and operational reports by respective level of Management generated by internal management 
information system supplemented by external data and information collected. Respective risk owners are responsible to assess 
the changes to the existing operational risks and emerging risks and to formulate and implement effective controls to manage 
the risks. Critical and material risks are highlighted to the Risk Management Committee and/or the Senior Management for the 
final decision on the formulation and implementation of effective internal controls and its reporting to the Board.

The monitoring of the risk management by the Group is enhanced by the internal audits carried out by the internal audit function 
with specific audit objectives and business risks identified for each internal audit cycle based on the internal plan approved by 
the Audit Committee.

INTERNAL CONTROL SySTEM

The key features of the Group’s internal control systems are described below:

•	 Board	of	Directors/Board	Committees

Board Committees (i.e. AC, RC and NC) are established to carry out duties and responsibilities delegated by the Board, 
governed by written terms of reference. 

Meetings of Board of Directors and respective Board Committees are carried out on scheduled basis to review the 
performance of the Group, from financial and operational perspective. Business plans and business strategies are 
proposed by top management for the Board’s review and approval, after taking into risk consideration and responses. 
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•	 Organisation	Structure	and	Authorisation	Procedures

The Group has a formal organisation structure in place to ensure appropriate level of authorities and responsibilities 
are delegated accordingly to competent staffs in achieving operational effectiveness and efficiency. Authority limit are 
established within the Group to provide a clear functional framework of authority for critical control points.

•	 Policies	and	Procedures

The Group has documented policies and procedures that are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure its relevance to 
support the Group’s business activities in achieving the Group’s business objectives.

•	 Human	Resource	Policy 

Comprehensive guidelines on the human resource management are in place to ensure the Group’s ability to operate in 
an effective and efficient manner by employing and retaining adequate competent employees possessing necessary 
knowledge, skill and experience in order to carry out their duties and responsibilities assigned effectively and efficiently.

Performance evaluations are carried out for all levels of staff to identify performance gaps, for training needs identification 
and talent development.

•	 Monitoring	and	Review

At operational level, weekly operation meetings among the key operational management staffs were held focusing on the 
allocation of responsibility and the monitoring of all key operational issues and projects in order to manage its operation 
effectively and efficiently. A set of operational and financial performance indexes was developed to act as a monitoring tool 
as well as to provide a basis for setting up a realistic yardstick for further improvement. 

Furthermore, monthly management accounts and the quarterly financial statement containing key financial results and 
comparison against previous results are presented to the Board for their review. Operational and financial performance 
report is also presented by the Chief Financial Officer during the Board’s meeting for the Board to assess the operational 
performance and future prospect of the Group as well as the external environment to be faced by the Group ahead.

In addition to the internal audits, significant control issues highlighted by the external auditors as part of their statutory 
audits and the monitoring of compliance with ISO certification carried out by internal ISO auditors as well as surveillance 
audit by independent consultants engaged by the Group serve as the fourth-line-of-defense.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control system is outsourced to an 
independent professional firm, who, through the Audit Committee provides the Board with much of the assurance it requires in 
respect of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s systems of the risk management and internal control. 

Risk-based internal audit plan in respect of financial year ended 31 October 2016 was drafted, after taking into consideration 
existing and emergent key business risks identified in the key risk profile of the Group, the Senior Management’s opinion and 
previous internal audits performed, and was reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee prior to execution. Each internal 
audit cycles within the internal audit plan are specific with regard to business processes to be assessed and scopes of the 
internal control review.

The outsourced internal audit function is reporting to the AC directly and the engagement director is a Certified Internal Auditor 
accredited by the Institute of Internal Auditors Global and a professional member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia. 
The internal audits are carried out, in material aspects, in accordance with the International Professional Practices Framework 
established by the Institute of Internal Auditors Global.

As third-line-of-defense, the internal control review procedures performed by the internal audit function are designed to 
understand, document and evaluate risks and related controls to determine the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, 
risk and control structures and processes and to formulate recommendations for improvement thereon. The internal audit 
procedures applied principally consisted of process evaluations through interviews with relevant personnel involved in the 
process under review, review of the Standard Operating Procedures and/or process flows provided and observations of the 
functioning of processes in compliance with results of interviews and/or documented Standard Operating Procedures and/or 
process flows. Thereafter, testing of controls for the respective audit areas through the review of the samples selected based 
on sample sizes calculated in accordance to predetermined formulation, subject to the nature of testing and verification of the 
samples.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT &
INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’d)
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During financial year ended 31 October 2016, the internal audit function has conducted review for finance management and 
corporate governance for the Group’s operations.

Upon the completion of the internal audit field work during the financial year, the internal audit reports were presented to 
the AC during its scheduled meetings. During the presentation, the internal audit findings and recommendations as well as 
management response and action plans are presented and deliberated with the members of the AC participating actively in the 
deliberation. Update on the status of action plans as identified in the previous internal audit report are presented at subsequent 
AC meeting for review and deliberation.

The cost incurred in maintaining the outsourced internal audit function for the financial year ended 31 October 2016 amounted 
to RM 23,320.00

ASSURANCE PROVIDED By THE CEO AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND CONTROLS AND REGULATION 
ASSESSMENT By SENIOR MANAGEMENT

In line with the Guidelines, the CEO, being highest ranking executive in the Company and Chief Financial Officer, being the 
person primarily responsible for the management of the financial affairs of the Company have provided assurance to the 
Board that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems have operated adequately and effectively, in all material 
aspects, to meet the Group’s objectives during the financial year under review. 

ASSURANCE PROVIDED By EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to paragraph 15.23 of the ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the external auditors have reviewed 
this Statement for inclusion in the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended 31 October 2016 and reported to the Board 
that nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe that the statement is inconsistent with their understanding 
of the processes adopted by the Board in reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the systems of internal controls. 

CONCLUSION

Based on the review of the risk management process and internal control system as well as the monitoring and review 
mechanism stipulated above coupled with the assurance provided by the CEO and the Chief Financial Officer, the Board 
believe that, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary, the risk management and internal control systems are satisfactory 
and have not resulted in any material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Group’s annual 
report throughout the financial year and up to and as of the date of this report. The Board continues to take pertinent measures 
to sustain and, where required, to improve the Group’s risk management and internal control systems in meeting the Group’s 
strategic objectives.

The Board is committed towards maintaining an effective risk management and internal control systems throughout the Group 
and where necessary put in place appropriate plans to further enhance the Group’s systems of internal control. Notwithstanding 
this, the Board will continue to evaluate and manage the significant business risks faced by the Group in order to meet its 
business objectives in the current and challenging business environment.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board dated 6 February 2017.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT &
INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’d)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31 October 2016.

PrinciPal activities

The Company is principally engaged in business of investment holding and provision of management services. The principal 
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Financial results

        Group   company
        rM  rM

Net profit for the financial year    4,292,168 1,870,990 
   

reserves and Provisions

All material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year are disclosed in the financial statements.

dividends

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year.

The directors do not recommend any dividends in respect of the financial year ended 31 October 2016.

issue oF shares and debentures

There were no issues of new shares or debentures by the Company during the financial year.

oPtions Granted over unissued shares

No share options were granted by the Company during the financial year.

eMPloyees share oPtion scheMe

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take up unissued shares of the 
Company.

directors

The Directors who served since the date of the last report are: -

Choy Ngee Hoe
Lee Chong Leng
Ong Hui Peng
Vincent Loh
Wang Choon Seang
Pang Nam Ming
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

directors’ interests

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965, 
the interests of those Directors who held office at the end of the financial year in shares in the Company during the financial 
year are as follows:

       number of ordinary shares of rM0.10 each
      balance   balance 
      at    at
      1.11.2015  acquired  sold  31.10.2016

Direct interest:    
  Choy Ngee Hoe   30,526,950 - - 30,526,950
  Lee Chong Leng   3,754,150 - - 3,754,150
  Ong Hui Peng (F)   3,799,650 - - 3,799,650

By virtue of their shareholdings in the ultimate holding Company, Choy Ngee Hoe, Lee Chong Leng and Ong Hui Peng (F) are 
deemed to have interests in shares in all the subsidiary companies during the financial year to the extent of the Company’s 
interest, in accordance with Section 6A of the Companies Act 1965.

directors’ beneFits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director is entitled or become entitled to receive any benefit (other than as 
disclosed in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director 
or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement whose object is to enable 
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body 
corporate.

bad and doubtFul debts

Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company were 
made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of 
bad debts and the making of impairment of receivables and are satisfied that all known bad debts have been written off and 
adequate impairment had been made for doubtful debts.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would render the amount written off for bad 
debts, or the amount of the allowance for impairment, in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate 
to any substantial extent.

current assets

Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company were 
made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain whether any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely 
to realise in the ordinary course of business their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company 
and to the extent so ascertained were written down to an amount that they might be expected to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would render the values attributed to the current 
assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.



VisDynamics | Annual Report 2016 39

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

valuation Methods

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render adherence to the 
existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

continGent and other liabilities

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year which 
secures the liabilities of any other person, or 

(ii) any contingent liabilities in respect of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year, 
other than as disclosed in the financial statements. 

In the opinion of the Directors, except disclose in Note 26, no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the Group and of the 
Company has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the 
financial year which, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as 
and when they fall due.

chanGe oF circuMstances

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or in the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that would render any amount stated in the respective financial 
statements misleading.

iteMs oF an unusual nature

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year, in the opinion of the Directors, may be 
substantially affected by items, transactions or events of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or 
event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially the results of the operations 
of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

events subsequent to balance sheet date

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the year and the date of this report any, item, transaction or event of 
a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors, to affect substantially the results of the operations of the 
Group and the Company for the year in which this report is made.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

auditors

The auditors, Messrs. ADAM & CO., have indicated their willingness to accept reappointment in accordance to Section 172(2) 
of the Companies Act, 1965.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

………………………………………………...

CHOY NGEE HOE Director

………………………………………………...

LEE CHONG LENG Director

Shah Alam in the state of Selangor Darul Ehsan 

Date: 6 February 2017
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

STATUTORY DECLARATION
Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

We, CHOY NGEE HOE and LEE CHONG LENG, being two of the Directors of VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD, state that, 
in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 44 to 78 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 
in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 October 2016 
and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

The supplementary information on Note 29 on page 78 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on 
Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

…………………………………….. .…………………………….….……
CHOY NGEE HOE LEE CHONG LENG
Director Director 

Shah Alam in the state of Selangor Darul Ehsan 
Date: 6 February 2017

I, PEGGY CHEK HONG KIM (NRIC No.: 780511-04-5156), the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of 
VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 44 to 
78 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same 
to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the )
Above named PEGGY CHEK HONG KIM, )
at Shah Alam in the state of )
Selangor Darul Ehsan  on 6 February 2017 )

 .…………………..…..……………..
 PEGGY CHEK HONG KIM

Before me,      

…..……………………….…
sulaiMan bin Zahari
commissioner for oath
No : B 233
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD

report on the Financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of visdynaMics holdinGs berhad, which comprise the statements of financial 
position as at 31 October 2016 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements 
of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as set out on pages 44 to 78.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and fair view in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the Company as 
of 31 October 2016 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 
in Malaysia.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and its 
subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

(b) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s financial 
statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements 
of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes. 

(c) Our audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse comment 
made under Section 174(3) of the Act. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD (cont’d)

Other reporting responsibilities

The supplementary information set out in Note 29 on page 78 to the financial statements is disclosed to meet the requirement 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in 
accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context 
of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary 
information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad.

Other matters

The report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 
1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

adaM & co. taqiyuddin aMini bin abdul satar
AF 1250 2378/09/18(J)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Shah Alam in the state of Selangor Darul Ehsan 
Date: 6 February 2017
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2016

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
     note rM rM rM rM

non-current assets      

Property, plant and equipment 4 4,860,826 5,299,693 - -
Investment in subsidiary companies 5 - - 2,999,980 2,999,980
Intangible assets  6 3,351,099 3,609,729 - -
Deferred tax assets  16 - 83,000 - -

total non-current assets  8,211,925 8,992,422 2,999,980 2,999,980

current assets      

Inventories   7 10,050,232 7,760,497 - -
Trade receivables  8 4,721,022 639,735 - -
Other receivable  8 485,605 200,085 28,355 22,275
Amount owing by a subsidiary 9 - - 5,068,258 5,788,356
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 10 5,745,000 3,818,637 5,745,000 3,818,637
Cash and bank balances 10 4,821,206 1,400,390 1,269,158 131,481

total current assets  25,823,065 13,819,344 12,110,771 9,760,749

total assets   34,034,990 22,811,766 15,110,751 12,760,729

equity      

Share capital   11 11,069,530 11,069,530 11,069,530 11,069,530
Share premium  12 6,417,708 4,403,202 6,417,708 4,403,202
Warrant reserves  13 - 2,013,906 - 2,013,906
Retained profits   6,230,334 1,938,166 (3,130,882) (5,001,872)

total equity   23,717,572 19,424,804 14,356,356 12,484,766

non-current liabilities      

Borrowings   14 203,262 244,715 - -
Deferred tax   16 497,982 - - -

total non-current liabilities  701,244 244,715 - -

current liabilities      

Trade payables  17 1,347,121 582,648 - -
Other payables  17 5,101,429 1,972,054 754,395 275,963
Borrowings   14 2,621,540 587,545 - -
Tax payable    546,084 - - -

total current liabilities  9,616,174 3,142,247 754,395 275,963

total equity and liabilities  34,034,990 22,811,766 15,110,751 12,760,729

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2016

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
     note rM rM rM rM

Revenue    18 27,467,634 9,434,309 3,600,000 360,000 

Cost of sales    (12,021,927) (5,040,723) - - 

Gross profit    15,445,707 4,393,586 3,600,000 360,000 

Other operating income  760,895 651,193 96,145 105,570 

Selling and distribution expenses  (3,111,350) (1,198,142) - - 

Administration expenses  (5,926,391) (3,828,977) (1,825,002) (1,448,887) 

Other operating expenses  (554,606) (359,113) - - 

Research and development expenses  (1,051,362) (268,211) - - 

Finance costs    (143,452) (54,451) (153) (316) 

Profit / (loss) before taxation 19 5,419,441 (664,115) 1,870,990 (983,633) 

Taxation    22 (1,127,273) (139) - - 

total comprehensive income attributable to :   
owner of the parent  4,292,168 (664,254) 1,870,990 (983,633) 

Earning per ordinary share  attributable 
  to equity holders of the Company (sen)      
 
  - Basic     3.88 (0.60) - - 
  - Dilute     3.88 (0.60) - - 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2016
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2016

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM

cash FloW FroM oPeratinG activities    

Profit / (Loss) before taxation  5,419,441 (664,115) 1,870,990 (983,633)
Adjustment for:-    

Amortisation of develepment expenditure  446,252 317,061 - -
Amortisation of patents and trademarks  8,796 8,292 - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  554,606 504,242 - -
Interest expenses   125,236 39,832 - -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (35,503) - - -
Gain on foreign exchange - unrealised  (118,332) (145,129) - -
Gain on foreign exchange - realised  (135,545) (47,353) - -
Addition / (Reversal) of provision  3,312,437 (545,358) - 
Interest income   (97,072) (105,897) (96,145) (105,570)

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital 
  changes     9,480,316 (638,425) 1,774,845 (1,089,203)

Changes in working capital:    
Increase in inventories  (2,289,735) (795,418) - -
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and  other receivables (4,366,807) 2,803,640 (6,080) (354)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables  581,411 (83,392) 478,432 (42,195)

Cash generated from / (used in) operating activities  3,405,185 1,286,405 2,247,197 (1,131,752)
Tax paid     (207) (139) - -
Interest paid    (125,236) (39,832) - -

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating  
  activities    3,279,742 1,246,434 2,247,197 (1,131,752)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2016 (cont’d) 

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM

cash FloW FroM investinG activities    
Interest received   97,072 105,897 96,145 105,570
Payment for development expenditure  (196,418) (18,547) - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (117,582) (1,060,027) - -
Additional of trademarks  - (14,012) - -
Proceed from disposal of property, plant and  
  equipment    35,503 - - -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment  1,843 - - -

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing  activities (179,582) (986,689) 96,145 105,570

cash FloW FroM FinancinG activities    
Net advance from / (to) a subsidiary  - - 720,098 (399,072)
Drawdown of banker acceptances  6,373,000 1,859,700 - -
Repayment for banker acceptances  (4,341,000) (3,822,700) - -
Proceed of hire purchase  - 293,000 - -
Repayment of hire purchase  (39,458) (16,314) - -
Issuance of share capital  - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Transfer of warrant reserve  600 1,580,000 600 1,580,000

Net cash generated from financing activities  1,993,142 893,686 720,698 2,180,928

net increase in cash and cash equivalents  5,093,302 1,153,431 3,064,040 1,154,746
effects of exchange rate changes  253,877 192,482 - -
cash and cash equivalents brought forward  5,219,027 3,873,114 3,950,118 2,795,372

cash and cash equivalents at end of the 
  financial year   10,566,206 5,219,027 7,014,158 3,950,118

cash and cash equivalents comprise:    
    
Cash and bank balances  4,821,206 1,400,390 1,269,158 131,481
Fixed deposit with licensed banks  5,745,000 3,818,637 5,745,000 3,818,637
 
      10,566,206 5,219,027 7,014,158 3,950,118

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General inForMation 

 The Company is principally engaged in business of investment holding and provision of management services. The 
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

 There have been no significant changes in the principal activities of the Group during the financial year.

 The Company is a public listed company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on the ACE Market, Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

 The registered office of the Company is located at 10th Floor, Menara Hap Seng, No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala 
Lumpur.

 The principal place of business of the Company is located at Lot 3844, Jalan TU 52, Kawasan Perindustrian Tasik Utama, 
Ayer Keroh, 75450 Melaka.

 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the 
Directors on

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies 

2.1 basis of preparation of the financial statements 

 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with applicable 
Malaysia Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the 
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

 Companies Commission of Malaysia (SSM) has announced that the Companies Act 2016 (CA 2016) will be 
implemented in phases with the first phase of which came into effect January 31, 2017. With the enforcement of the 
first phase of the CA 2016, the Companies Act 1965 is repealed. 

 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting 
policies below. 

 The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM). 

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain accounting estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of financial statements, and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported 
financial period. It also requires directors’ best knowledge of current events and action, and therefore actual results 
may differ. 

 The Group and the Company will adopt the above pronouncements when they become effective in the respective 
financial periods. These pronouncements are not expected to have any significant effect to the financial statements 
of the Group and of the Company upon their initial application. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.2 standards issued but not yet effective 

 As at the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following Standards, Amendments and Issues 
Committee (“IC”) Interpretations have been issued by the Malaysia Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but are 
not yet effective and have been adopted by the Group and the Company: 

 effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

 Amendments to MFRS 112 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

 Amendments to MFRS 107 Disclosure Initiative

 effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

 Amendments to MFRS 9  Financial Instruments

 MFRS 15   Revenue from Contracts from Customers

 Amendments to MFRS 2  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payments Transaction

 effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

 MFRS 16   Leases

 The Group and the Company will adopt the above pronouncements when they become effective in the respective 
financial periods. These pronouncements are not expected to have any effect to the financial statements of the Group 
and of the Company upon their initial application.

2.3 significant accounting policies 

 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and in the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965, MFRS and IFRS. 

(a) basis of consolidation 

 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary made 
up to 31 October 2016. 

 A subsidiary is defined as a company in which the parent company has the power, directly or indirectly, to 
exercise control over its financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

 All subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase method. Under the purchase method, the result of the 
subsidiaries acquired or disposed off are included from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal. 
At the end of acquisition, the fair values of the subsidiaries’ net assets are determined and these values are 
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. The cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair 
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued 
by the Group in exchange for the control of the acquire, plus any costs directly attributable to the business 
combination. 

 Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains transactions are eliminated; unrealised losses are also 
eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements 
of subsidiaries to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.3 significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

(b) Financial instruments 

 Financial instrument are recognised in the statements of financial position when the Group has become a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to 
a financial instruments classified as a liability, are reported as an expenses or income. Distributions to holders of 
financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity. 

 Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle 
either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the 
financial instrument. 

 Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the individual policy 
statement associated with each item. 

 The Group and the Company categorise the financial instruments as follows: 

(i) Financial assets 

 On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables financial assets, or available-for-sale financial 
assets, as appropriate. 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss when the financial asset 
is either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are 
designated as hedges. 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising 
on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. Dividend income from this category of financial assets is 
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. 

 Held-to-maturity investments 

 Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and fixed maturities that the management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any 
impairment loss, with revenue recognised on an effective yield basis. 

 Available-for-sale financial assets 

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated in this category or 
are not classified in any of the other categories. 

 Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to 
receive payments is established. 

 Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.3 significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

(b) Financial instruments (cont’d) 

(i) Financial assets (cont’d) 

 Loans and receivables financial assets 

 Trade receivables and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market are classified as loans and receivables financial assets. Loans and receivables financial 
assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. 
Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when 
the recognition of interest would be immaterial. 

(ii) Financial liabilities 

 All financial liabilities are initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method other than those categorised as fair value 
through profit or loss. 

 Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either held for trading or 
are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 
otherwise arise. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. 

(iii) equity instruments 

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares 
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds. 

 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation 

(c) intangible assets 

 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at costs. The cost of intangible assets 
acquired in a business combination is their fair values as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried as cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment 
losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with 
finite lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic useful lives and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period 
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life reviewed at least at each statement 
of financial position date. 

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for impairment annually or more 
frequently if the events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either 
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is also 
reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to be supportable. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.3 significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(d) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 All items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in 
which they are incurred. 

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost modified by the revaluation of certain property less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 

 The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairments. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the statements 
of comprehensive income. 

 Depreciation is provided on the straight-lone method in order to write off the cost of each asset to its residual 
value over its estimated useful life. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the assets becomes idle or is 
retired from active use unless the assets is fully depreciated. 

 The principal depreciation rates of property, plant and equipment are as follows: 

Building 2% - 4%
Plant and machinery 10% - 20%
Furniture, fitting and electrical installation 10% - 33.33%
Motor vehicle 20%
Computer equipment 20% - 33.33%
Renovation 2% - 4%

 The depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
balance sheet date to ensure the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous 
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of 
the property, plant and equipment.

 Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction, and which are not ready for commercial use 
at the statement of financial position. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, and will be transferred to the 
relevant category of long term assets and depreciated accordingly when the assets are completed and ready for 
commercial use.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognised of the asset is included in the 
statement of comprehensive income in the financial year asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.3 significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(e) impairment of assets 

(i) Impairment of financial assets 

 All financial assets (except for financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss and investment 
in subsidiaries) are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence of impairment 
as a result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the assets. Losses 
expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For an equity instrument, a 
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment. 

An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised in profit or loss and 
is measured as the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its 
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the fair value reserve. In addition, the 
cumulative loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under fair value 
reserve, is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instrument, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the 
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to 
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed 
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised. In respect of available-
for-sale equity instruments, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed 
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss made is recognised in 
other comprehensive income.

(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying value of assets, other than those to which MFRS 136 – Impairment of Assets does not apply, 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for impairment when there is an indication that the assets 
might be impaired. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their 
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the assets is the higher of the assets’ fair value less costs 
to sell and their value-in-use, which is measured by reference to discontinued future cash flow. 

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the asset is carried at its revalue 
amount. Any impairment loss of a revalue asset is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of a 
previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset. 

When there is change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, a subsequent increase 
in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a reversal of the previous impairment loss and is 
recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have been determined (net of 
amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is recognised in profit 
or loss immediately, unless the asset is carried at its revalue amount. A reversal of an impairment loss on 
revalue asset is credited to other comprehensive income. However, to the extent that an impairment loss 
on the same revalue asset was previously recognised as an expense in the statements of comprehensive 
income, a reversal of that impairment loss is recognised as income in the statements of comprehensive 
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.3 significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(f) investments 

 Investments in subsidiaries are initially stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company, and 
are reviewed for impairment at the end of the financial year if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
their carrying values may not be recoverable. 

(g) inventories 

 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on the weighted average cost basis. Cost of 
raw materials comprised the cost of purchase plus the cost of bringing the inventories to their present location 
and condition. For finished goods and work-in-progress cost consist of raw materials, direct labour and an 
appropriate proportion of production overheads. 

(h) receivables 

 Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable values. Bad debts are written off when identified. Allowance is 
made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts as at the statement of financial position 
date.

(i) research and development expenditure 

 Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 

Development expenditure is recognised as an expense except that expenditure incurred on developments 
projects are capitalised as long-term assets to the extent that such expenditure is expected to generate future 
economic benefits. Development expenditure is capitalised if, and only if an entity can be demonstrate all of the 
following: 

(i) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the asset under development; 

(ii) the product or process is technically and commercially feasible; 

(iii) its future economic benefits are probable 

(iv) its ability to use or sell the develop asset; and 

(v) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the asset under development. 

Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. Development expenditure initially recognised as an expense is not recognised as assets in the 
subsequent period.

The development expenditure is amortised on a straight-line method over a period of not exceeding 5 years 
when the products are ready for sale or use. In the event that the expected future economic benefits are no 
longer probable of being recovered, the development expenditure is written down to its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.3 significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(j) Patents and trademarks 

 Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line 
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying product not exceeding 10 years.

(k) cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and fixed deposits, net of bank overdrafts which 
have an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(l) Payables 

 Payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and 
services received.

(m) hire purchase 

 Property, plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase are capitalised and are depreciated in accordance 
with the policy stated in Note 2.3 corresponding obligations relating to the remaining capital payments are 
treated as liabilities. Finance charge are charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the period of 
the plan so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each 
accounting period. 

(n) interest-bearing borrowings 

 Interest-bearing bank borrowings are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of transaction costs. 

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are capitalised as part of 
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs 
are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

(o) equity instruments 

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or 
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax from proceeds. 

(p) segmental information 

 Segmental revenue and expenses are those directly attributable to the segments and include any joint revenue 
and expenses where a reasonable basis of allocation exists. Segment assets include all assets used by a segment 
and consist principally of property, plant and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation, where applicable), 
inventories, receivable, and cash and bank balances. 

 Most segment assets can be directly attributed to the segments on a reasonable basis. Segment assets and 
liabilities do not include income tax assets and liabilities respectively. 

 Segment revenue, expenses and results include transfers between segments. The prices charged on inter-
segment transactions are based on normal commercial terms. These transfers are eliminated on consolidation. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.3 significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(q) share capital 

 Ordinary shares are recorded at the nominal value and proceeds in excess of the nominal value of shares issued, 
if any, are accounted for as share premium. Both ordinary shares and share premium are classified as equity. 
Cost incurred directly attributable to the issuance of the shares are accounted for as a deduction from share 
premium, otherwise it is charged to the statement of comprehensive income. 

 Dividends to shareholders are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared or approved by 
shareholders at general meeting. 

(r) Provisions 

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligations, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risk specific to the 
liability and the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

(s) related Parties 

 A party is related to an entity if:

(i) directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party: 

• controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes parents, subsidiaries 
and fellow subsidiaries); 

• has an interest in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity; or 

• has joint control over the entity 

(ii) the party is an associate of the entity 

(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the entity is venture, 

(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the entity or its parent; 

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv); 

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which significant 
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or 

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the entity, or of any entity that 
is related party of the entity. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.3 significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(t) taxation 

 Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred income tax liabilities. Current income tax 
liabilities is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year and is 
measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at the statement of financial position date. 

 Deferred income tax liabilities is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the 
statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
in the financial statements. In principle, deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences and deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax 
losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. 

 A deferred income tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of a deferred income 
tax asset is reviewed at each statement of financial position date. If it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred income tax asset to be utilised, the 
carrying amount of the deferred income tax asset will be reduced accordingly. When it becomes probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available, such reduction will be reversed to the extent of the taxable profit. 

(u) Functional and presentation currency 

(i) Functional and presentation currency 

 The functional currency of the Group is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Group operates. 

 The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the parent’s 
functional and presentation currency. 

 The principal closing rates used in transaction of foreign currency amounts are as follows: 

    2016 2015
    rM rM

Foreign currency    

1 Singapore Dollar    3.020 2.070 
1 US Dollar    4.204 4.304

(ii) transactions and balances 

 Transactions in foreign currency are converted into RM at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at the 
transaction dates. Transactions in foreign currency are measured in the respective functional currencies 
of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies 
at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities at 
the statement of financial position date are translated at the rates ruling as of that date. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. All 
exchange differences are taken to the statement of comprehensive income.  

    



VisDynamics | Annual Report 2016 59

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2. suMMary oF siGniFicant accountinG Policies (cont’d) 

2.3 significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(v) employee benefits 

(i) Short term employee benefits 

 Wages, salaries and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which the 
associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. 

(ii) Defined contribution plan 

 The Group’s contribution to defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of comprehensive 
income in the period to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further 
liability in respect of the defined contribution plans. 

(iii) Share-based payments transaction 

 At grant date, the fair value of option granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a 
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the employees become unconditionally entitled 
to the options. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share 
options that are expected to vest. 

(w) contingency liabilities and contingent assets 

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. 
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that 
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

 A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change 
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision. 

 A contingent asset is a probable asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group. 

(x) revenue recognition 

 Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred to the buyer. 

 Other revenue earned by the Group and by the Company are recognised on the following basis: 

(I) Interest income 

 Interest income is recognised on accrual basis, based on the effective yield on the investment. 

(ii) Sales of goods 

 Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and customers’ acceptance and where applicable, net of 
returns and trade discounts. 

(iii) Management fee 

 Management fees from subsidiaries are accounted for on accrual basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

3. siGniFicant accountinG estiMates and JudGeMents 

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. It also requires Directors to exercise their 
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The estimates and judgements that effect the 
application of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures, and have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below:

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

 The estimated for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for the property, plant and 
equipment are based on commercial and production factors which could change significantly as a result of technical 
innovations and competitors’ actions in response to the market conditions. 

 The Group anticipates that the residual values of its property, plant and equipment will be insignificant. As a result, 
residual values are not being taken into consideration for the computation of the depreciable amount. 

 Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and 
the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised. 

(b) Taxation 
 
 There are certain transactions computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be different from the initial 

estimate. The Group recognised tax liabilities based on its understanding of the prevailing tax laws and estimates 
of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of business. Where the final outcome of these matters is 
different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax 
provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 

(c) Impairment of non-financial assets 

 When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value-in-use of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to make an estimate of the expected 
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine the 
present value of those cash flows. 

(d) Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties 

 The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed criteria in making 
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, 
the Group consider whether a property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets held by the 
Group. 

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is 
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could 
be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If 
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held 
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. 

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a 
property does not qualify as investment property. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

3. siGniFicant accountinG estiMates and JudGeMents (cont’d)  

(e) Recoverability of receivables 

 The Group makes impairment of receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. Impairment 
are applied to receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not 
be recoverable. Management specifically analyses historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer 
creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer payment terms when making a judgement to 
evaluate the adequacy of the impairment for doubtful debts of receivables. Where the expectation is different from 
the original estimate, such different will impact the carrying value of receivables. 

(f) Allowance for inventories 

 Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories. These reviews 
require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of 
inventories. 

(g) Fair value estimates for certain financial assets and liabilities 

 The Company carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which require extensive use of accounting 
estimates and judgement. While significant components of fair value measurement were determined using verifiable 
objective evidence, the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group uses different valuation methods. 
Any changes in fair value of these assets and liabilities would affect profit and equity. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

4. ProPerty, Plant and equiPMent (cont’d) 

 Included in property, plant and equipment is building with a carrying value of RM2,826,119 (2015: RM2,897,646) which 
have been pledged to a financial institution as security for banking facilities granted to the Group.

 The motor vehicle of the Group acquired under hire purchase terms was carried at net book value of RM237,219 (2015: 
RM305,104) at the statements of financial position.

5. investMent in subsidiary coMPanies 

investments in subsidiary   

        2016 2015
        rM rM

Unquoted equity shares, at cost    2,999,980 2,999,980 
   
 The details of subsidiary are as follows:

  effective equity  
  interest  
name of company country of 2016 2015 Principal activities
 incorporation % % 
VisDynamics Research Malaysia 100 100 Manufacturer of automated test   
  Sdn. Bhd.      equipment
    

 The financial statement of the subsidiary is audited by Adam & Co.

6. intanGible assets

 Group    Goodwill development Patents and
       expenditure trademarks total 
       rM rM rM

cost:-
Balance as at 1 November 2015  1,576,446 3,011,414 110,792 4,698,652 
Additions during the financial year  - 282,226 - 282,226 
Written Off during the financial year  - (85,808) - (85,808) 

Balance at 31 October 2016  1,576,446 3,207,832 110,792 4,895,070 

accumulated ammortisation:-     
     
Balance as at 1 November 2015  - 1,035,215 53,708 1,088,923 
Ammortisation during the financial year  - 446,252 8,796 455,048 

Balance at 31 October 2016  - 1,481,467 62,504 1,543,971 

net book value  1,576,446 1,726,365 48,288 3,351,099 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

6. intanGible assets (cont’d) 

 Group    Goodwill development Patents and
       expenditure trademarks total 
       rM rM rM

cost:-
Balance as at 1 November 2014  1,576,446 2,992,867 96,780 4,666,093 
Additions during the financial year  - 1,064,261 14,012 1,078,273 
Written Off during the financial year  - (1,045,714) - (1,045,714) 

Balance at 31 October 2015  1,576,446 3,011,414 110,792 4,698,652 

accumulated ammortisation:-     
     
Balance as at 1 November 2014  - 718,154 45,416 763,570 
Ammortisation during the financial year  - 317,061 8,292 325,353 

Balance at 31 October 2015  - 1,035,215 53,708 1,088,923 

net book value  1,576,446 1,976,199 57,084 3,609,729 

(a) Goodwill 
 The goodwill is not impaired as the machine still has demand from the customers. 

(b) development expenditure 
 Development expenditure included Gravity based system, Tray based system, Rotary tray system, Wafer based 

system and Supplementary equipment. The estimated useful life for development expenditure is 3 to 5 years. 

(c) Patents and trademarks 
 Patents and trademarks are registered in Malaysia, Taiwan, China, Singapore, Philippines, United State of America 

and other country. The estimated useful life for patents and trademarks is 10 to 20 years. 

7. inventories 

  Group
        2016 2015
        rM rM

at cost:    
Raw materials     4,650,525 3,749,067
Work in progress    2,813,980 3,124,362
Finished goods    2,585,727 887,068

       10,050,232 7,760,497
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

8. trade receivables and other receivables 

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM

trade receivables      
Third parties   4,721,022 639,735 - -
Less: Impairment of receivables  - - - -
    
     4,721,022 639,735 - -
Prepayments        
Other receivables  169,453 37,125 7,426 6,256
Deposits    44,431 94,331 1,000 1,000
Prepayments   271,721 68,629 19,929 15,019
 
     485,605 200,085 28,355 22,275

trade and other receivables  5,206,627 839,820 28,355 22,275

(a) The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 90 days (2015: 30 to 90 days). Other credit terms are 
assessed and approved on a case by case basis. 

(b) The currency exposure profile of receivables is as follows: 

  Group
        2016 2015
        rM rM

US Dollar     4,718,079 617,172

9. aMount oWinG by a subsidiary 

  company
        2016 2015
        rM rM

Non-trade balances    5,068,258 5,788,356

10. cash and cash equivalents           
             

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM 
 

Fixed deposits with licensed banks  5,745,000 3,818,637 5,745,000 3,818,637 
Cash and bank balances  4,821,206 1,400,390 1,269,158 131,481 
 
As reported in statement of cash flows  10,566,206 5,219,027 7,014,158 3,950,118
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

10. cash and cash equivalents (cont’d) 

(a) The foreign currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances is as follows:

  Group
        2016 2015
        rM rM

US Dollar     2,711,570 673,300

(b) The foreign weighted average effective interest rates of deposits at the statement of financial position was as follows: 

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      % % % %

Licensed banks  3.21 3.23 3.21 3.23
         

(c) The average maturities of deposits at the statement of financial position date were as follows: 

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      days days days days

Licensed banks  30 30 30 30

11. share caPital

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
     number of share rM rM
 

Ordinary shares of RM0.10 each:-      

authorised:      
At beginning / at the end of the year  250,000,000 250,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 

issued and fully paid-up:      
At beginning of the year  110,069,530 100,069,530 11,069,530 10,069,530 
Issued during the year  - 10,000,000 - 1,000,000 

At the end of the year  110,069,530 110,069,530 11,069,530 11,069,530 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

12. share PreMiuM
   
  Group / company
        2016 2015
        rM rM

At beginning of the financial year    4,403,202 4,403,202 
Transfer from warrant reserves    2,014,506 -

At end of the financial year    6,417,708 4,403,202 
   

13. Warrant reserves

  Group / company
        2016 2015
        rM rM

At beginning of the financial year    2,013,906 2,013,906 
Transfer to share premium    (2,013,906) -

At end of the financial year    - 2,013,906 
   

During the financial year ended 31 October 2011, the company issued 50,347,650 five (5) year new warrants on the basis 
of one (1) for every two (2) existing ordinary shares of RM0.10 each held in the Company.

Each warrant will entitle its registered holder to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share in the Company at an exercise 
price of RM0.25 per share at any time within 5 years from the date of issue of the warrant. The last date to exercise the 
warrant rights is 01 September 2016.

During the financial year ended 31 October 2016, there is no warrants have been exercised.

The warrants had lapsed due to expiry of warrant on 01 September 2016 and has been reclassify to share premium.

14. borroWinGs

  Group
        2016 2015
        rM rM

current     

secured     
Bankers acceptances    2,583,000 551,000 
Hire purchase and lease creditors (note 15)    38,540 36,545 

Total Current Portion    2,621,540 587,545 

non-current     
     
secured     
Hire purchase and lease creditors (note 15)    203,262 244,715 

total borrowings    2,824,802 832,260 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

14. borroWinGs (cont’d) 

(a) The bankers’ acceptances are secured as follows: 

(i) by a corporate guarantee from the Company; and 

(ii) by way of a fixed charge over the leasehold land together with a factory erected thereon as disclosed in Note 4 
to financial statements. 

15. hire Purchase

Group      hire  
      hire Purchase  
      Purchase interest  
      creditors suspense net
      rM rM rM

Obligations at 31 October 2016     
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years   175,494 (12,766) 162,728 
Later than 12 months and not later than 2 years  48,924 (8,390) 40,534
 
      224,418 (21,156) 203,262 
     
Due within 12 months   48,924 (10,384) 38,540 
     
      273,342 (31,540) 241,802 

Group      hire  
      hire Purchase  
      Purchase interest  
      creditors suspense net
      rM rM rM

Obligations at 31 October 2015     
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years   228,273 (22,098) 206,175 
Later than 12 months and not later than 2 years  48,924 (10,384) 38,540
 
      277,197 (32,482) 244,715

Due within 12 months   48,924 (12,379) 36,545
 
      326,121 (44,861) 281,260 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

16. deFerred tax

        2016 2015
        rM rM

As at beginning of the year    (83,000) (83,000)  
 
Amount recognised in statement of  comprehensive income (note 22)  580,982 - 

As at end of the year    497,982 (83,000)  
 
      

        2016 2015
       rM rM 
Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:-     
 
Deferred tax liabilities / (asset)    497,982 (83,000)

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year prior to offsetting are as follows: 

Deferred tax liabilities / (asset) of the Compay:-  
 
       Property,  
       plant and  
       equipment total
       rM rM

As at 1 November 2015    (83,000) (83,000) 
Amount recognised in statement of  comprehensive income   580,982 580,982

As at 31 October 2016    497,982 497,982

17. trade and other Payables

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM 

current     
trade payables     
Third parties   1,347,121 582,648 - -

other payables     
Other payables  549,793 732,856 33,350 13,803
Accruals    1,988,701 645,733 119,338 117,330
Provision    2,562,935 593,465 601,707 144,830

     5,101,429 1,972,054 754,395 275,963
 
     6,448,550 2,554,702 754,395 275,963

     

(a) The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group ranges from 30 to 120 days. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

17. trade and other Payables (cont’d)

(b) The foreign currency exposure profile of trade payables is as follows:

  Group
        2016 2015
        rM rM

Singapore Dollar    57,532 13,406

(c) The foreign currency exposure profile of other payables is as follows: 
    

  Group
        2016 2015
        rM rM

US Dollar     433 39,316

18. revenue

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM

Sales of goods  27,467,634 9,434,309 - -
Rendering of services  - - 3,600,000 360,000
 
     27,467,634 9,434,309 3,600,000 360,000

19. ProFit / (loss) beFore tax

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
     note `rM rM rM rM

Profit / (Loss) before taxation is arrived       
  at after charging / (crediting):     
Amortisation of development expenditure  446,252 317,061 - -
Amortisation of patents and trademarks  8,796 8,292 - -
Auditors’ remuneration  27,059 22,660 14,059 11,660
Depreciation of property, plant and     
  equipment   554,606 504,242 - -
Directors’ remuneration 20 1,738,975 1,008,235 1,287,080 734,154
Finance cost:     
  Bank charges  18,216 14,619 153 316
  Bankers acceptance interest  113,024 34,507 - -
  Hire purchase interest  12,212 5,325 - -
  
     143,452 54,451 153 316
Gain / (Loss) on foreign exchange:     
- realised    (135,545) - - -
- unrealised   (118,332) (145,129) - -
Interest expense  125,236 39,832 - -
Addition / (Reversal) of provisions  3,312,437 (545,358) - -
Employee benefits 21 4,120,366 3,567,993 199,494 210,289
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment  (35,503) - - -
Interest income  (97,072) (105,897) (96,145) (105,570)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

20. director reMuneration

 The aggregate amount of emoluments received and receivable by directors of the Group and of the Company during the 
financial year are follows:

 The breakdown of directors’ remuneration:

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM

Non-executive directors    
  Fees    156,000 128,000 156,000 128,000

Executive directors    
  Salaries    1,291,318 719,342 962,456 532,788
  Bonus    61,730 7,345 46,500 -
  Employee Provident Fund  169,934 103,646 121,072 72,746
  Other emoluments  59,993 49,902 1,052 620
 
     1,582,975 880,235 1,131,080 606,154
 
     1,738,975 1,008,235 1,287,080 734,154

Benefit-in-kind 
  Non-executive directors  9,000 7,800 9,000 7,800 
  Executive directors  124,472 117,357 75,272 75,157

      133,472 125,157 84,272 82,957

The breakdown of the categories charged out to:

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM

Charged to income statement  1,582,396 850,052 1,287,080 734,154
Capitalised to development expenditure  36,081 73,502 - -
Capitalised to capital work-in-progress  111,803 76,836 - -
Capitalised to other projects  8,695 7,845 - -
 
     1,738,975 1,008,235 1,287,080 734,154
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

20. director reMuneration (cont’d)

 The details of emoluments for the directors of the Group and the Company received and receivable for the financial year 
by category and in bands of RM50, 000 are as follows:

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015

     rM rM rM rM 

Non-executive directors     
  Below RM50,000  2 2 2 2 
  RM50,001 - RM100,000  1 1 1 1 

Executive directors       
  RM100,001 - RM200,000  1 2 - - 
  RM200,001 - RM300,000  1 1 1 2 
  RM300,001 - RM400,000  1 1 1 1 
  RM400,001 - RM500,000  - - - - 
  RM500,001 - RM600,000  1 - 1 - 

21. eMPloyee beneFits

 The breakdown of the staff costs:

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015

     rM rM rM rM

Salaries and wages  2,443,948 2,733,733 73,794 67,200
Bonus    376,649 166,394 5,100 11,200
Employees Provident Fund  393,873 358,669 20,474 11,976
Social Security Contribution  29,081 35,277 707 620
Other staff related expenses  876,815 273,920 99,419 119,293
 
     4,120,366 3,567,993 199,494 210,289

The breakdown of the categories charged out to:

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015

     rM rM rM rM

Charged to income statement  3,274,496 2,348,411 199,494 210,289
Capitalised to development expenditure  95,065 219,258 - -
Capitalised to capital work-in-progress  496,669 428,377 - -
Capitalised to other projects  254,136 571,947 - -
 
     4,120,366 3,567,993 199,494 210,289
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

22. taxation

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM

Tax expense for the year  546,084 - - - 
Under provision in prior year  207 139 - -
Deferred taxation (note 16)  580,982 - - -

Total tax expense  1,127,273 139 - -

The reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit / (loss) before taxation at the statutory tax rates to income 
tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM

Profit / (Loss) before taxation  5,419,441 (664,115) 1,870,990 (983,633)
Tax at statutory tax rate of    
  24% (2015: 25%)  1,300,666 (166,029) 449,038 (196,728)

Adjustment for:-    
Non-deductible expenses  926,422 481,694 15,560 24,343
Capital allowances  (269,737) (345,237) - -
Tax exempt income  (118,997) (124,927) (23,075) -
Tax losses   (1,292,270) 154,499 (441,523) 172,385
Under provision in prior year  207 139 - -
Deferred taxation  580,982 - - -

Tax expense for the financial year  1,127,273 139 - -

23. ProFit / (loss) Per share 

(i) Basic profit / (loss) per share 

 The basic profit / (loss) per share for the financial year is arrived at by dividing the Group’s profit / (loss) attributable 
to equity holders of profit RM 4,292,168 (2015: (RM664,254)) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 
RM0.10 each in issue during the financial year of 110,695,300 (2015: 110,695,300) 

(ii) Dilute profit / (loss) per share 

 The dilute profit / (loss) per share for the financial year is arrived at by dividing the Group’s profit / (loss) attributable 
to equity holders of profits RM 4,292,168 (2015: (RM664,254)) by the weighted average number of dilutive potential 
ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in issue during the financial year of 110,695,300 (2015: 110,695,300). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

24. Purchase oF ProPerty, Plant and equiPMent
    

  Group
        2016 2015
        rM rM

Cost of property, plant and equipment purchased   117,582 727,340
Amount financed through hire purchase    - 331,000
 
       117,582 1,058,340

25. related Party disclosure 

(i) The Company has the following transaction with related parties during the financial year: 

    
  Group
        2016 2015
        rM rM

subsidiary    
Management fee received    3,600,000 360,000

(ii) Compensation of key management personnel

 The remuneration of directors and other members key management personnel during the year were as follows:

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015

     rM rM rM rM

Short term employee benefits  3,062,284 1,894,496 1,344,565 759,828
Employees Provident Fund  328,857 208,704 141,546 84,722
 
    3,391,141 2,103,200 1,486,111 844,550

Included in the compensation of key management personnel are:      
 

  Group company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      rM rM rM rM 

Directors’ remunerations           
  (note 20)  1,738,975 1,008,235 1,287,080 734,154 
 
             
Executive directors of the Group and the Company and other members of key management have not been granted 
options under the ESOS.            
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  

26. continGent liabilities           
 

  company
        2016 2015
        rM rM 
 

Guarantee given to a financial institution for banking  
  facilities granted to a subsidiary    5,561,000 5,561,000

27. seGMental rePortinG           
 

  Group
        2016 2015
        rM rM 

sales revenue by geographical market:      
Malaysia      275,078 222,132 
South East Asia    10,517,641 1,546,879  
North Asia     16,414,944 7,189,636 
United States of America    259,971 475,662  
 
       27,467,634 9,434,309 

Group    
     Manufacturing others elimination total
2016    rM rM rM rM 

Revenue:     
External revenue  27,467,634 - - 27,467,634
Inter segment revenue  - 3,600,000 (3,600,000) -

     27,467,634 3,600,000 (3,600,000) 27,467,634

Results:     
Segment results  3,027,000 1,774,998 - 4,801,998
Finance cost   (143,299) (153) - (143,452)
Other operating income  664,750 96,145 - 760,895

Profit before income tax  3,548,451 1,870,990 - 5,419,441
Income tax   (1,127,273) - - (1,127,273)
Profit attributable to equity     
  holders of the company  2,421,178 1,870,990 - 4,292,168

Other informations:     
     
* Segment assets  25,416,031 15,110,751 (6,491,792) 34,034,990
^ Segment liabilities  14,631,281 754,395 (5,068,258) 10,317,418
Capital expenditure  (117,582) - - (117,582)
Depreciation   554,606 - - 554,606 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

27. seGMental rePortinG (cont’d) 

Group    
     Manufacturing others elimination total
2015    rM rM rM rM

Revenue:     
External revenue  9,434,309 - - 9,434,309
Inter segment revenue  - 360,000 (360,000) -

     9,434,309 360,000 (360,000) 9,434,309
Results:     
     
Segment results  (171,653) (1,088,887) - (1,260,540)
Finance cost   (54,451) (317) - (54,768)
Other operating income  545,623 105,570 - 651,193

Profit / (Loss) before     
income tax   319,519 (983,634) - (664,115)
Income tax   (139) - - (139)
Loss attributable to equity     
  holders of the company  319,380 (983,634) - (664,254)

Other informations:     
     
* Segment assets  17,262,927 12,760,729 (7,211,890) 22,811,766
^ Segment liabilities  8,654,640 275,963 (5,788,356) 3,142,247
Capital expenditure  1,060,027 - - 1,060,027
Depreciation   504,242 - - 504,242

* - Segment assets comprise total current and non-current assets.
^ - Segment liabilities comprise total current and long-term liabilities.

28. Fair value oF Financial instruMents

 Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in forced sale or liquidation.

 The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each item of financial instruments:

(a) amount owing by a subsidiary 

 The Company does not anticipate the carrying amount recorded at the balance sheet date to be significantly different 
from the value that would eventually be received or settled. 

(b) cash and bank balances and other short term receivables 

 The carrying amounts approximated their fair values due to the relatively short term maturity of these instruments. 

(c) short term bank borrowings and other current liabilities 

 The carrying amounts approximated their fair values because of the short period to maturity of these instruments. 

(d) long term bank borrowings 

 The carrying amounts approximated the fair value as this instrument bears interest at variables rates. 
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28. Fair value oF Financial instruMents (cont’d) 

(e) hire purchase obligations 

 The fair value of hire purchase payables are determined by discounting the relevant cash flows using current interest 
rates similar types of instruments. There is no material difference between their fair values and the carrying values of 
these liabilities as at the statement of financial position. 

(f) contingent liabilities 

 The nominal amount and net fair value of financial instruments not recognised in the statement of financial position 
of the Company are as follows: 

  2016 2015
      nominal net Fair nominal net Fair
      amount value  amount value 
      rM rM rM rM

Corporate guarantees  5,561,000 * 5,561,000 *
    

 * - The fair value of contigent liabilities is expected to be minimal as the subsidiary is expected to be able to repay the 
banking facilities

(g) interest rate risk 

 Interest rate risks mainly arise from the Group’s debt obligations. The Group reviews its debt portfolio, taking into 
account the nature and requirements of its business as well as the current business and economic environment. 

 The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. 
Interest rate exposure arises from the Group’s borrowings is managed through the use of fixed and floating rate 
borrowings. The Group’s deposits are replaced at fixed rates and management endeavours to obtain the best rate 
available in the market. 

 Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk: 

 As at 31 October 2016, if interest at the date had been 100 basis points lower with all other variables held constant, 
profit before income for the year would have been RM 29,202 (2015: RM29, 864) higher and vice versa. 

29. suPPleMentary inForMation – breakdoWn oF retained ProFits into realised and unrealised 

The breakdown of the retained profits / (accumulated losses) of the Group and Company as at 31 October 2016 into 
realised and unrealised profits / (accumulated losses) is presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25th March 2010 and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 
1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

        Group company
        2016 2016
        rM rM

Total retained profits / (accumulated losses)   
- Realised     5,784,597 (3,130,882) 
- Unrealised     533,524 -
 
       6,318,121 (3,130,882) 
Consolidation adjustment    (87,787) -

Total retained profits / (accumulated losess)    6,230,334 (3,130,882) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)  
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LIST OF LANDED PROPERTIES AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2016

Description Corporate and manufacturing plant
 
Location Lot 3844 Jalan TU 52, Kawasan Perindustrian Tasik Utama
  Ayer Keroh, 75450 Melaka
 
Land area 6,690 square metres
 
Tenure Leasehold (99 years) expiring on 29 March 2097
 
Net book value as at 31/10/2015 RM3,703,016
 
Date of acquisition 20 February 2007
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Issued and fully paid up Capital :  RM11,069,530.00
Class of Shares :  Ordinary Shares
Voting Rights :  One vote per ordinary share

distribution table a accordinG to the nuMber oF securities held in resPect oF ordinary shares 
as at 25 January 2017

no.oF no.oF

cateGory holdes % shares %

Less than 100 20  1.99 9 00 0.00
100 - 1,000 53  5.03  22,050  0 .02
1,001 - 10,000      363    34.44    2,441,300   2.21
10,001 - 100,000    520   49.34   18,809,750  16.99
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares   110   10.44   58,894,350   53.20
5% and above of issued shares 1     0.09  30,526,950   27.58

total 1,068 101.33 110,695,300 100.00

directors’ shareholdinGs

no. naMe oF directors shareholdinGs %

1 CHOY NGEE HOE 30,526,950 27.58

2 LEE CHONG LENG 3,754,150 3.39

3 ONG HUI PENG 3,799,650 3.43

4 VINCENT LOH - -

5 WANG CHOON SEANG - -

6 PANG NAM MING - -

substantial shareholders

no. naMe oF substantial shareholders no. oF shares %

1 CHOY NGEE HOE 30,526,950 27.58
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS (cont’d)

nos  naMe     share %

1 CHOY NGEE HOE    30,526,950  27.58 
2 ONG HUI PENG     3,799,650  3.43
3 LEE CHONG LENG    3,754,150  3.39 
4 CHAN HENG SOON    3,600,150 3.25
5 JONG PIT FONG    3,054,150 2.76
6 CH’NG PAED WEE    2,919,750 2.64
7 TEO LEONG KHOON    2,729,150 2.47
8 TAN HOCK VENG    2,640,000 2.38
9 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR KONG KOK CHOY (8092812)  2,620,000 2.37
10 HLB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR OO PHAIK SEE   2,376,800 2.15
11 OH KUANG ENG    2,300,000 2.08
12 CHONG CHOY FOONG    1,300,000 1.17
13 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 CIMB BANK FOR PHANG CHET PING (MY0322)   1,300,000 1.17
14 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD    
 CIMB BANK FOR TAN YAT KIANG (MY1469)    1,278,700 1.16
15 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 CIMB BANK FOR GEE KAH WAI (MY2595)    1,100,000 0.99
16 LAI KAM KEONG    1,000,000 0.90
17 MENG QIUJIA    800,000 0.72
18 MOHD RAZALI BIN ABDUL RAHMAN    750,000 0.68
19 CHONG WEN TAT    579,900 0.52
20 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 PHEIM ASSET MANAGEMENT SDN BHD FOR CB INDUSTRIAL PRODUCT
 HOLDING BHD (A/C 229) (211669)    557,000 0.50
21 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR GOH BOON HAN @ FRANKIE GOH (E-JAH)  544,900 0.49
22 YONG LIN KOK    530,000 0.48
23 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAY MOI NIN (SEGAMAT-CL)  523,100 0.47
24 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 CIMB BANK FOR LIM ENG HOCK (MY0946)    500,000 0.45
25 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR YEOH LEE PENG (T MUTIARA-CL)  500,000 0.45
26 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LEE SOON AUN @ 
 LEE ENG SOON (E-BMM/TBR)    500,000 0.45
27 TEOH WEI CHAN    500,000 0.45
28 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
 MAYBANK TRUSTEES BERHAD FOR PHEIM EMERGING COMPANIES 
 BALANCED FUND (211899)    459,000 0.41
29 GOH CHEE HOH    450,000 0.41
30 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD    
 YEW NIEN ZHENG    450,000 0.41

 total    73,943,350 66.80

toP thirty (30) securities accounts holders as at 25 January 2017
(Without aggregating the securities from different securities account belonging to the same Depositor)
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NOTICE OF TWELFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

notice is hereby Given that the Twelfth Annual General Meeting of VisDynamics Holdings Berhad will be held at the 
Conference Room, Lot 3844, Jalan TU 52, Kawasan Perindustrian Tasik Utama, Ayer Keroh, 75450 Melaka on Thursday, 23 
March 2017 at 10.30 a.m., for the purpose of considering the following businesses

a G e n d a

ordinary business

1. To receive the Directors’ Report, Audited Financial Statements and the Auditors’ Report for the 
financial year ended 31 October 2016.
                                                                                            

Please refer to 
Explanatory Note 1

2. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees to the Directors amounting to RM156,000 for the 
financial year ended 31 October 2016. Ordinary Resolution 1

3. To approve the payment of benefit payable to the Directors of the Company and its Subsidiary 
amounting to RM1,076,000 for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018. Ordinary Resolution 2

4. To re-elect the following directors who retire in accordance with Paragraph 69 of the Constitution 
of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election:

a. Vincent Loh Ordinary Resolution 3

b. Wang Choon Seang Ordinary Resolution 4

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Adam & Co. as auditors of the Company and authorise the Directors to 
fix their remuneration. Ordinary Resolution 5

sPecial business

6. To consider and if thought fit, pass the following Ordinary Resolution, with or without modification:

authority to issue shares

“THAT subject always to the Companies Act, 2016, Constitution of the Company and approvals 
from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and any other governmental/regulatory bodies, where 
such approval is necessary, authority be and is hereby given to the Directors pursuant to Section 
75 of the Companies Act, 2016 to issue not more than ten percent (10%) of the issued capital 
of the Company at any time upon any such terms and conditions and for such purposes as 
the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit or in pursuance of offers, agreements or 
options to be made or granted by the Directors while this approval is in force until the conclusion 
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company and that the Directors be and are hereby 
further authorised to make or grant offers, agreements or options which would or might require 
shares to be issued after the expiration of the approval hereof.” Ordinary Resolution 6
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NOTICE OF TWELFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)

7. To consider and if thought fit, pass the following Ordinary Resolution, with or without modification:

Proposed renewal of authority for purchase of own shares by the company

“THAT, subject always to the Companies Act, 2016, the provisions of the Constitution of the 
Company, the ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa 
Securities”) and all other applicable laws, guidelines, rules and regulations, the Company be 
and is hereby authorised, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to purchase such amount of 
ordinary shares in the Company as may be determined by the Directors of the Company from 
time to time through Bursa Securities upon such terms and conditions as the Directors may 
deem fit and expedient in the interest of the Company provided that:-

(i) the aggregate number of shares purchased does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the 
total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company as quoted on Bursa Securities as at 
the point of purchase;

(ii)  the maximum fund to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of purchasing the 
shares shall be backed by an equivalent amount of retained profits; and

(iii) the Directors of the Company may decide either to retain the shares purchased as treasury 
shares or cancel the shares or retain part of the shares so purchased as treasury shares 
and cancel the remainder or to resell the shares or distribute the shares as dividends.

THAT the authority conferred by this resolution will commence after the passing of this ordinary 
resolution and will continue to be in force until:-

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) at which time it shall lapse 
unless by ordinary resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is renewed, either 
unconditionally or subject to conditions; or

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM after that date is required by law to 
be held; or

(iii) revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company in a 
general meeting;

whichever occurs first.

AND THAT authority be and is hereby given unconditionally and generally to the Directors of the 
Company to take all such steps as are necessary or expedient (including without limitation, the 
opening and maintaining of central depository account(s) under the Securities Industry (Central 
Depositories) Act 1991 of Malaysia, and the entering into all other agreements, arrangements 
and guarantee with any party or parties) to implement, finalise and give full effect to the aforesaid 
purchase with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, revaluations, variations 
and/or amendments (if any) as may be imposed by the relevant authorities and with the fullest 
power to do all such acts and things thereafter (including without limitation, the cancellation or 
retention as treasury shares of all or any part of the purchased shares or to resell the shares or 
distribute the shares as dividends) in accordance with the Constitution of the Company and the 
requirements and/or guidelines of ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities and all 
other relevant governmental and/or regulatory authorities.” Ordinary Resolution 7

8. To transact any other ordinary business of which due notice shall have been given.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

PEGGY CHEK HONG KIM (MIA 23475)
TEO MEE HUI (MAICSA 7050642)
Company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
Dated this 28th day of February, 2017
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NOTICE OF TWELFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)
notes:

1. For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend this Twelfth Annual General Meeting, the 
Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn. Bhd. in accordance with Paragraph 50(f) of the Company’s 
Constitution to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 15 March 2017. Only a depositor whose name appears 
on the Record of Depositors as at 15 March 2017 shall be entitled to attend the said meeting and to speak or vote thereat.

2. Every member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy / proxies to attend and vote for him/
her. The member may attend and vote in person at the meeting after lodging the proxy form but however such attendance 
shall automatically revoke the proxy’s authority. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. If the proxy is 
not a member of the Company, he need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the 
Registrar of Companies.

3. A member shall be entitled to appoint at least one (1) and up to three (3) proxies to attend at the meeting. Where a 
member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proxies shall not be valid unless he/she specifies the proportion of his/her 
shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

4. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for 
multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which 
the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in common or usual form) under the hand of the appointer or of his 
attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under the seal or under the hand of an officer 
or attorney duly authorised.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially 
certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 10th Floor, Menara 
Hap Seng, No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding 
the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

exPlanatory note

1.  Item 1 of the Agenda - Directors’ Report, Audited Financial Statements and the Auditors’ Report for the financial year 
ended 31 October 2016

 The Audited Financial Statements under this agenda item is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 248 of 
the Companies Act 2016 does not require a formal approval of the shareholders and hence this item is not put forward for 
voting.

2. Item 6 of the Agenda – Ordinary Resolution 6

 The proposed resolution, if passed, will give flexibility to the Directors to issue shares to such persons at any time in their 
absolute discretion without convening a general meeting. This authorisation will expire at the conclusion of next Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. 

 This is the renewal of the mandate obtained from the members at the last Annual General Meeting (“the previous mandate”). 
The previous mandate was not utilised and accordingly no proceeds were raised.    

 The purpose of this general mandate is for possible fund raising exercises including but not limited to further placement of 
shares for purpose of funding current and/or future investment projects, working capital, repayment of borrowings and/or 
acquisitions.

3. Item 7 of the Agenda – Ordinary Resolution 7

 The proposed resolution, if passed, will allow the Company to purchase its own shares up to 10% of the total issued and 
paid-up capital of the Company by utilising the funds allocated which shall not exceed the retained profits of the Company.

 For further information, please refer to the Share Buy-Back Statement dated 28 February 2017.



visdynaMics holdinGs berhad
(677095-M)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

number of shares held

cds account number

*I/We  *NRIC No./Passport No./Company No. 
of 
being a Member(s) of VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD (677095-M), hereby appoint 

Name Address NRIC / Passport No. Proportion of 
Shareholdings (%)

*And/or (delete as appropriate)

*And/or (delete as appropriate)

Proxy ForM

or failing *him/her, * the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/our proxy(ies), to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Twelfth 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Conference Room, Lot 3844, Jalan TU 52, Kawasan Perindustrian 
Tasik Utama, Ayer Keroh, 75450 Melaka on Thursday, 23 March 2017 at 10.30 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.

#  If you wish to appoint other person(s) to be your proxy/proxies, kindly delete the words “or failing him/her, the Chairman of 
the Meeting” and insert the name(s) of the person(s) desired.

Mark either box if you wish to direct the proxy how to vote. If no mark is made the proxy may vote on the resolution or abstain 
from voting as the proxy thinks fit. If you appoint more than one proxy and wish them to vote differently this should be specified.

My/our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below:

ordinary resolution For against

1. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM156,000 for the financial year 
ended 31 October 2016

2. To approve the payment of benefit payable to the Directors of the Company and 
its Subsidiary amounting to RM1,076,000 for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2018

3. To re-elect Mr Vincent Loh as Director pursuant to Paragraph 69 of the Company’s 
Constitution

4. To re-elect Mr Wang Choon Seang as Director pursuant to Paragraph 69 of the 
Company’s Constitution

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Adam & Co. as the Auditors Company and authorised the 
Directors to fix their remuneration

6. Authority to Issue Shares
7. Proposed Renewal of Authority for purchase of own shares by the Company

* Delete if not applicable.

Signed this....…...... day of ….….…..................... 2017 ………….…….……….………............…….
 Signature / Common Seal of Shareholder

notes:
(1) For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend this Twelfth Annual General Meeting, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn. Bhd. 

in accordance with Paragraph 50(f) of the Company’s Constitution to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 15 March 2017. Only a depositor whose name appears on the 
Record of Depositors as at 15 March 2017 shall be entitled to attend the said meeting and to speak or vote thereat.

(2) Every member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy / proxies to attend and vote for him/her. The member may attend and vote in person at the meeting 
after lodging the proxy form but however such attendance shall automatically revoke the proxy’s authority. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. If the proxy is not a 
member of the Company, he need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Companies.

(3) A member shall be entitled to appoint at least one (1) and up to three (3) proxies to attend at the meeting. Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proxies shall not be 
valid unless he/she specifies the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

(4) Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus 
account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

(5) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in common or usual form) under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a 
corporation, either under the seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

(6) The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at 
the Registered Office of the Company at 10th Floor, Menara Hap Seng, No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding 
the meeting or any adjournment thereof.



The Company Secretary
VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD (677095-M)

10th Floor Menara Hap Seng
No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Then fold here

1st fold here

Fold this fl ap for sealing
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